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Financial Highlights
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Note 2011 2010 % Changes
PaE - —E-TF BHHEOLL
Results
HK$'000
Turnover LR 557,551 680,481 (18.07)
Gross profit FEH 21,064 92,863 (77.32)
(Loss) profit before taxation — BRBiAT (B1E) 3% A (57,389) 14,018 (509.40)
(Loss) profit after taxation RREHER A
attributable to owners FEAEBR B2
of the Company (B18) =F (49,714) 8,087 (714.74)
Dividends I = = =

Assets and Liabilities
HK$'000

Total assets BEE 553,021 529,902 4.36
Total liabilities BEE 225,772 155,918 44.80
Shareholders’ equity AR 327,249 373,984 (12.50)

Per Share Data
HK cents

Basic (loss) earnings X (E18) &F (15.35) 2.50 (714.00)
Diluted (loss) earnings BE (BR) B (15.35) 2.50 (714.00)
Dividends iz 8 - - -
HK$ BT

Net asset value BEFE 1.01 1.15 (12.17)
Financial Ratio Jo/p o

Gross profit margin (%) FEFZE (%) 3.78 13.65 (72.31)
Net (loss) profit margin (%) 7% (&518) & F (%) (8.98) 1.13 (894.69)
Current ratio BN =& 1 1.54 2.59 (40.54)
Quick ratio RB)LL =K 2 1.24 2.00 (38.00)
Gearing ratio BfELX 3 0.41 0.29 41.38
Notes: FIAE -

(1) Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities. (1) B EERBEERARBEE -

(2) Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided (2) B EETBEFENRBEERURE AR -
by current liabilities.
(3) Gearing ratio represents total liabilities divided by total assets. (3) BELEEEEERNBEE -
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We are keeping abreast of market trend to develop multi-
function electronic devices and expect positive returns
to be generated on this investment

HPINERE MBI REZRETFRER
I FEER Al 145 — IR & R B IE A Bl 3R
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REEFTEBERATF

Qhairman’s Statement
FEREE

We are emphasising product
design and development to

strengthen our competitive
edge

s R Z SRR EERE
r HER

To capture the opportunities arising in the dynamic yet
challenging consumer electronic products industry, during
the last years, the Group has tried to transform itself
from an OEM (original equipment manufacturer) and
ODM (original design manufacturer) of electronic
components supplier into a more proactive industry
player, focusing on research and development of
integrated total solutions. We expect positive returns
will be generated on this investment as the Group
will benefit from the transformation in the long run.

RTHERTMBDEMEIBEENEERETFER
TEMEENEE  AEEEBEFECENH
—{E OEM (JR4A % LR ) /ODM (JRIGRRAT &
) EF TR ERELK S —EE NEENTT
AR BINRALFARES  2EHNERT
= o WMEMK AT {EE —REREREG EmER
MARERETAGREREARTE -

Yang Ho Sung Rt 2
Chairman /&
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Given the declining demand of traditional consumer products and the accelerated product life cycles, the Group is
actively looking for fresh opportunities. We have analysed the growing popularity of smartphones and other mobile
devices while working with our clients to develop multi-function electronic devices such as a smartphone dual docking
system and an integrated wireless bluetooth speaker to tap the business opportunities of this market trend. While the
demand for traditional home electronics products is dropping, the Group is accelerating the pace to expand the product
portfolio to include higher margin automotive electronics. We are already one of the major suppliers of car audio systems
solutions in the Korean automotive market and we are striving to further extend our market share and position in this
arena.

ENEHRHEREMTRERMERBHMR  AEEERBESHOKE - RSN T ERESEMEMBHEE
HREkHBs  WNEFPHBOREZREEFERE  NERTFHRESHEZONCBRSETHESRS  UWERE
—TMEBENEE ERRXEEFERTRTE  ARERIRSKBEAERES  BEXSMNENTEETE
f e RMERBEAEMSEMSTERMRNTRNTIZRHER 2 — Y ERNEBRARFE L RINN TSN BN

fi7 o

Looking ahead, we see opportunities as well as challenges in the market. The flexibility and to promptly respond to
rapidly evolving market trends are essential in this fast-changing industry. We plan to strengthen our competitive
edge by emphasising product design and development, aiming at providing our customers with quality products that
can cater for their needs. The construction of our new production plant in Korea is to be completed and commence
trial production in April 2012. The new production facilities should enhance the Group’s research and development
capability as well as the production capacity, thus strengthening our leading position in the industry.

REARK - RAIBDTHH LHBREKEATF - BEWARHESRRENTISBY - SEE A ARNITERDA
PBAAPHEE - HPFBERRMORFES  BRIBEMNE  HEARPRHUERBAGLHATENELE
i e RAEBRENTLAEREBSRTYRN —T——FMOARKRE - EMNEERGEREEAASENHEEN
DEERE - KM PIETARMBELAL -

Caution and prudence will be our guiding sentiments for the year ahead. The Group will continue its prudent financial
management strategy by maintaining stringent controls on cash flow while further boosting its operational efficiency.

RERMBERITE - AEEK ERMEFTENTBERRE - YRSMEREEOITSH - ANE-— SRS SERE -

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend my deep appreciation to our highly committed management team and
staff. | would also wish to offer my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, my fellow board members and our customers for
their unwavering support, which is critical to the continued success of the Group.

AANERRAEFERMSERERANEREBEGMNE TBARAHE « AATBEROBEHZREKR  EFSH
AR B P ERE 5 - MELEEANREELEENEER -

By Order of the Board i ZE =2
Yang Ho Sung £ E

Chairman =&

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012

&8 —E—_—F=A=+H
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CEO's Report
ITHRHHES

We have adjusted our business strategies by actively
launching new products with better profitability and
address the ever-changing market trends
AT BN AL B S R B S A5 2RI
iR BB ERMEE ] 2 FTEm
DA B N b 2 s FH K
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CEO'’s Report
THRRHRESE

We are diversifying our
concentrated market on
consumer electronics. We

have received positive market
feedback on newly launched
product and expect to see
improved business results in the
second half of 2012

BMS T EETERBTF B &
BRIt 5 S I R R
- B S ETEEEBHEA
BN E

Financial Review

Turnover

Total turnover decreased by HK$122,930,000 or 18.1%,
from HK$680,481,000 in 2010 to HK$557,551,000
in 2011. This mainly reflected decrease in sales of
composite components by HK$95,543,000 and unit
electronic components by HK$27,387,000.

R %5 1 R
4% 2% h — T — T 680,481,000 7L iE
122,930,000 7% 7T & = % — — 4 557,551,000 %
T ORIER18.1% © kX B RRE ST IHER
.20 95,543,000 7T I B A1 & T TT 1 $H E B
1>27,387,000 7T °

Yang Jai Sung R #EE
CEO 1THUARH
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by HK$51,131,000 or 8.7% to HK$536,487,000 (2010: HK$587,618,000). Cost of sales as
a percentage of sales rose from 86.4% in 2010 to 96.2% in 2011. Cost of materials consumed remained unchanged,
accounting for 66.4% of the total cost of sales in both years. The decline in cost of sales was mainly due to a drop in the
Group’s turnover in 2011.

Gross Profit

As a result of decrease in turnover, gross profit decreased by HK$71,799,000 or 77.3%, to HK$21,064,000 in 2011
(2010: HK$92,863,000). The drop in gross profit was primarily due to an increase in slow moving inventory provision
by HK$20,942,000, increase in subcontracting fee by HK$7,723,000 and increase in direct labour by HK$4,247,000.
Accordingly, overall gross profit margin also declined from 13.6% in 2010 to 3.8% in 2011.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by HK$430,000 or 5.0% from HK$8,552,000 in 2010 to HK$8,982,000 in 2011.
The rise in other income and gains was primarily due to net effect of an increase in gain on disposal of fixed assets of
HK$1,433,000 and rise in fair value of investment property of HK$1,586,000 and decrease in value added tax refund of
HK$2,748,000.

SHEMK

$HE R AR 51,131,000 B 7T & 536,487,000 % 7T (ZZE—ZF4F : 587,618,000 7T) * FIER8.7% © tHER AL
BEZENER_T—TFROA%FHE_T——F96.2%  BHREMBZKA®FTE - EMEFEHERKALE L
66.4% ° SHER AR EBIRAAKER - T ——F 2 EXBR DM -

EF

EEBTRE - EFERAT71,799,0008 T E —F — —F21,064,0008 7T - BERA773% (=T —FTF :
92,863,000 7T ) > EFIH A E B TR 77 & B A5 101 20,942,000 7T + IMEE RGN 7,723,000 8 LA R EET
BIE 14,247,000 TR » Bt - BEFETBH_T-TF 136% M E_T——5F38% °

H U\ R U &

HABWA Rz H =T —F4F 8,552,000 8 7T hN 430,000 0 £ —F ——4 8,982,000 7T + 1185 5.0% ° HAbBL
AR Es i E BT & B E B EWREEIN1,433,0008 7T - IREWHE Z A EHE 01,586,000 8 7T MG EHIR K
B 2,748,000/ 8 TT 2 F R AT
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by HK$3,640,000 or 17.1%, from HK$21,308,000 in 2010 to
HK$17,668,000 in 2011. The reduction in such expenses corresponded with the decline in turnover.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by HK$201,000 or 1.0%, from HK$19,644,000 in 2010 to HK$19,845,000 in 2011.
Administrative expenses kept at about the same level as 2010.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses slightly decreased by HK$830,000 or 2.3%, from HK$35,658,000 in 2010 to
HK$34,828,000 in 2011. The decline was due to the net effect of an increase in sundry research and development
costs by HK$1,629,000 and decrease in salaries by HK$2,659,000.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses increased by HK$4,696,000 or 45.2% from HK$10,398,000 in 2010 to HK$15,094,000 in
2011. The increase was primarily due to the impairment loss on goodwill of HK$5,857,000, arising from acquisition of a
subsidiary in prior years.

Finance Costs

No finance costs were recorded in 2011. This reflected finance costs capitalised on construction in progress for the
Group’s new facilities in Korea.

Taxation

In 2008, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) enquired the Company about the basis of its 50:50
offshore claims in relation to its manufacturing activities carried out by Shenzhen Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”) and a third party processing factory in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and the
deductibility of lease rentals since year of assessment 2001/02 and issued additional assessments for the prior years.
Accordingly, the Company has lodged objections, made provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax of HK$33,891,000 for
the previously 50:50 offshore claims and deduction of lease rentals for years of assessment 2001/02 to 2007/08 (the
“period”) and purchased tax reserve certificates of HK$23,380,000 as demanded by the HKIRD.

Having considered the advice from the Company’s tax advisor, on 30 December 2011, the Company submitted a
compromise settlement proposal (the “Proposal”) regarding the Company’s taxation affairs for the Period to the HKIRD,
via its tax advisor, with a view of compromising on the tax assessment dispute.

With the Proposal accepted by the HKIRD, tax dispute in respect of the Period is now settled. Based on notices and
letters received from the HKIRD, net Profits Tax payable for the Period has been revised to HK$24,239,000. As the
Company has made provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax of HK$33,891,000 for the Period, the excessive tax provision of
HK$9,652,000 made in previous years have been written back to the consolidated income statement in 2011.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June 2003, two shareholders, Mr. Yang Jai Sung and Kwang Sung Electronics
Co., Ltd. would indemnify the Group for any tax liabilities for period prior to 30 June 2003. Out of the above tax liabilities
of HK$24,239,000, a sum of tax expenses of HK$8,479,000 should be therefore borne by the two shareholders.

On the other hand, the HKIRD currently issued notices of assessment and statement of loss to the Company for the
years of assessment 2008/09 to 2010/11 in accordance with the Profits Tax returns submitted to the HKIRD for the
respective years although the compromise settlement bases agreed under the Proposal have yet to be applied. Based
on currently available information, in the opinion of the directors, the current provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
years of assessment 2008/09 to 2010/11 is sufficient.
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The PRC Corporate Income Tax decreased by HK$585,000 or 33.1% from HK$1,766,000 in 2010 to HK$1,181,000
in 2011. Taking into consideration the above reversal of provision of HK$9,652,000 in Hong Kong Profits Tax, under
provision of Korean Corporate Income Tax of HK$655,000 for prior years and deferred tax charge of HK$505,000 net
overall tax credit amount to HK$7,311,000 in 2011, as compared with overall tax expenses of HK$6,325,000 in 2010.

(Loss) profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group reported a loss after taxation attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$49,714,000 in 2011 compared to a profit after taxation attributable to owners of the Company of HK$8,087,000 in
2010.

Working Capital

Trade and bills receivable increased by HK$6,469,000 or 6.1% from HK$105,870,000 as at 31 December 2010 to
HK$112,339,000 as at 31 December 2011. This was primarily a result of an increase in turnover from HK$66,819,000
in the last two months of 2010 to HK$96,476,000 in the last two months of 2011. Accordingly, trade and bills receivable
turnover days increased from 60.7 days in 2010 to 71.4 days in 2011. Trade and bills receivables turnover days are
equal to the average trade and bills receivables divided by turnover and multiplied by 365 days for the year.

Inventory balance decreased by HK$18,664,000 or 22.6% from HK$82,673,000 as at 31 December 2010 to
HK$64,009,000 as at 31 December 2011. The decrease in inventory balance was mainly due to an increase in the slow
moving stocks provision provided during the year. Inventory turnover days increased from 43.4 days in 2010 to 49.9
days in 2011. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average inventory balances divided by cost of
sales and multiplied by 365 days for the year.

Trade payable increased by HK$10,489,000 or 15.9% from HK$65,825,000 as at 31 December 2010 to
HK$76,314,000 as at 31 December 2011. The increase in trade payable was primarily due to the increase in purchase
of raw material from HK$77,734,000 in the last quarter of 2010 to HK$94,737,000 in the last quarter of 2011. Trade
payable turnover days increased from 42.7 days in 2010 to 48.4 days in 2011. Trade payables turnover days is equal to
the average trade payables divided by cost of sales and multiplied by 365 days for the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated cash and banking facilities provided by its principal
bankers. The net cash position (total cash and bank balances less total bank borrowings) decreased by HK$83,441,000
or 69.7% from HK$119,661,000 as at 31 December 2010 to HK$36,220,000 as at 31 December 2011. The decrease
in net cash position primarily reflected the additional bank loans drawn by the Group to meet its capital needs for
construction of facilities in Korea.

Current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, decreased from 2.59 as at 31 December 2010 to
1.54 as at 31 December 2011. Gearing ratio, in terms of total liabilities to total assets, increased from 0.29 as at 31
December 2010 to 0.41 as at 31 December 2011. The decrease in current ratio and increase in gearing ratio were
primarily due to higher bank borrowings to finance capital expenditure in respect of the Group’s new facilities in Korea
that are under construction. However, the Group intends to restructure existing bank borrowing from short term bank
borrowing to long term bank borrowing in 2012 in order to enhance the Group’s liquidity.



Annual Report 2011

%R

PRI EMSHH - —F 41,766,000 % 708 2 585,000 8 L E =T ——4 1,181,000/ 7T * RFIEA33.1% ° &
KB E bl B B & B 15712 9,652,00078 T 2 B - B E TSR T B # #8655,000 78 7T MR RE IR X i
505,00087T « —T——FFRAMIBELET,311,0008 7T - T —FFEFIEFZ AR 6,325,000

FE (BR) i@F

R BRRENOHRATE AEER T —FHEARRER ABGIRTIZEEA49,71400087T  M-T—TF
RANRETEA AEIEEH 8,087,000/ 7T

EEEE
EWE S REEERERA T —TF+ - H=+—HZ105870,000/8 L& IN6,469,000 ELE T ——F+ A
=+—HZ 112,339,000 7T - #EIER6.1% - EINFEREEER _T—TFREMEH 2 66,819,000 % g%

—T—FHREMIEA 296,476,000 T - BRKE S LEBEFRFAGREH —FT—FF07RIEME-F——
F714K - BWE S MFERFEAERBUIEER R E 5 MEBERARIA L E BB RIANFE 365 HETE ©

FEESBAS—TF+-A=1T—H 2826730008 LK 18664000 ELE _T——F+_A=+—HZ
64,009,000/8 7T * HIEAR22.6% - FEAMB LD T EHNFARFIRZFHFERBIENMAYN - FEREBERBH -F
—TEABARENE T ——F 499K - FEEEBRBVRTHITEERBRUHENAFRALFE 365 BAE -

ENESERE-_E—ZF+-A=+—H2658250008Ti&H110,489,000 8 T2 —E—F+_A=+—HZ
76,314,000787C * iR A 15.9% - BN EZEFIENEZEANEMRHEBREHR S —SFKZF77,734,0008LiE =
TE——FRZF094,737,000 T - ENEFRFEFEREBH T —TF 427 KENE-FT——F 484K - BT
B GEFEAEREREN FO MR GRIA SR AR BRIAKNEE 365 H1E -

R9EE  UHEERELREE

REF—MUERNBEERS NEFTEERBITAIRMEZEITRNE  BHEKEHRRERES - FREMURN (RE K
RITERETERBITEERRSE) A T —EF+ - A=1+—H2119,661,000%F L84 83,441,000/8 8% 69.7% =
—ET——F+=-A=+—H2Z36,220,000/87C - FREMABLEERMALETREZRITERRTHRERZ

mBLEXR (RBEERRDRENLR) AT FF+ A=t "HZ29@EZ-_T——F+t-_A=+—HZ
154 MEELE (REEEAEEZLE) I -T—TF+_A=+—HZ09E="T——F+_A=1+—H
2041 REBLLERTRARBELE LA TERARESZRITEEURARENER EARRT ZARERITE
SR - A AEEREAERFRITEE R _FhHEHPRTEENRRBPRITEE - BUEFAR
SEZESRBN -

Turnover Days for 5 Years
LEZEAEXY

(DaysK)
100

O O O
Average Debtor Turnover Days  Average Creditor Turnover Days Average Inventory Turnover Days
RSl AETNEEPS -1 PR IRREAERE FHEFERERY



1 6 Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

AEBFEBERAA

CEQO's Report
THARABBRESE

Foreign Exchange Exposure, Hedging and Off Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The Group has been focusing on its own core business and follows a prudent financial policy. It has never invested in
any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products. In this respect, the Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risks, mainly due to its sales and purchases which are conducted using
United States Dollars (“USD”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY"), and operating expenses paid in Korean Won (“KRW”) by its
Korean operation.

As the Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) is pegged to the USD and Renminbi (“RMB”) is adjusted within the daily fluctuation
range under a managed floating exchange rate policy with reference to a basket of currencies, the Group does not
expect any significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of the HKD/USD and RMB/USD in the foreseeable future. In
the instance where short-term imbalance occurs, the Group will take necessary steps to ensure that net exposure to
other currencies such as JPY and KRW is maintained at an acceptable level. The Group will continue to closely monitor
exchange rate trends.

Investment Activities

In 2010, the Group acquired a parcel of land in Korea at a consideration of HK$52,120,000 and commenced
construction of new facilities in December 2010. The project, when completed, will facilitate the Group’s research and
development, manufacturing, and sales and marketing activities as well as provide administrative offices. As at 31
December 2011, the Group has invested HK$62,721,000 in construction of the building complex, which is expected to
be completed by April 2012.

Aside from the aforementioned, the Group did not make any material acquisitions or dispose of any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies during the year.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s certain assets of the Group, with an aggregate carrying value of HK$57,822,000
were pledged to secure banking facilities.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011. The Group is not involved in any current
material legal proceedings, nor is it aware of any pending or potential material legal proceedings involving the Group.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had total capital commitments in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment of HK$14,619,000.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 953 employees, including 28 based in Hong Kong, 840 in the PRC and 85 in
Korea.

Staff costs increased by HK$3,778,000 or 4.4%, from HK$85,836,000 in 2010 to HK$89,614,000 in 2011.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with prevailing industry practices, as well as employees’
performance and experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees who have demonstrated outstanding
performance with reference to the Group’s overall audited results. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.
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Composite Components Business

The turnover from the composite components business decreased by 24.4% to HK$296,271,000 (2010:
HK$391,814,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011. The drop was mainly due to the declining demand and
technological change for traditional home audios. The contribution of this segment to the Group’s total turnover has
therefore been reduced to 53.1% compared with 57.6% in 2010.

The sales from tuner modules for home audio systems decreased by 11.5% to HK$126,159,000 during the financial
year, representing 42.6% of the total turnover from the composite components business. Turnover of tuner modules
for car audios also dropped by 25.7% to HK$65,875,000 (2010: HK$88,665,000), which accounted for 22.2% of the
total turnover from that business. However, the Group strengthened its position in before market segment in fulfilling the
demand for automotive use during the year.
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Composite Components Business
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In addition, in line with the Group’s direction for automotive
electronics focus, the Group has successfully marketed
antenna modules for car audios and audio/video and navigation
(“AVN") systems, which was launched in 2009. The sale
of antenna modules, which are active antenna modules in
automotive vehicles for before market, increased by 126.8% to
HK$34,565,000 (2010: HK$15,238,000) during the year.

Sales of the Group’s wireless solutions have decreased by 64.6%
to HK$36,969,000 during the year (2010: HK$104,505,000)
mainly due to discontinued orders for FM transmitters for LCD
and LED televisions, and declining orders for wireless speaker
solutions from the existing customers. However, the Group
launched High Pass modules for auto toll in Korea in the second
half of 2011, and also obtained new orders from one of the
renowned electronic company in Japan for Bluetooth speaker
systems recently, which was designed by the Group’s research
and development resources, and thus expect to recoup its
revenues in this segment.
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Sales of Digital Products
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During the year, the sales of the Group’s digital solutions such
as digital audio broadcasting (“DAB”), digital multimedia
broadcasting (“DMB”), and hybrid digital radio (“HD
Radio”) also decreased by 32.8% to HK$10,624,000 (2010:
HK$15,800,000). Despite the recent decline in this product
group, the Group believes that digital solutions will be one of
the essential kits in home and automotive audio products in
European market, and will become one of key growth drivers of
the Group’s digital multimedia products in the upcoming years.

Leveraging the technology of Wiretape™, the Group has
developed the Wiretape™ application technology for cars and
smartphones such as flexible PCB antenna modules for cars
and augmented antenna for mobile devices, respectively. This
augmented antenna used for boosting signals for mobile phones
indoors was tested and well received by customers. The Group
has cooperated with customers in Europe, Japan, and Korea to
explore sales of Wiretape™ and its derived products in order to
build a diversified portfolio in the Wiretape™ sector and generate
satisfactory revenues in the near future.

Sales of Antenna Modules
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Unit Electronic Components Business

For the year ended 31 December 2011, turnover from the unit electronic components business recorded a drop of 9.5%
to HK$261,280,000 (2010: HK$288,667,000). The decrease was primarily net effect of decrease in sales of planar
transformers by HK$43,231,000 arising from the production suspension during the first half of 2011 and increase in
sales of coil products by HK$29,508,000.

The Group has taken the initiative to switch its customers’ demand to the products by automated production lines
during the year. The Group believed that switch from labour intensive manufacturing to automation for traditional unit
electronic components will eventually bring positive returns in the mid to long run, in light of the surging manufacturing
cost in the PRC including labour cost hikes in recent periods.
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Operational Efficiency

The Group is utilising the Enterprise Resources Planning (“ERP”)
system installed in 2010 to enhance its business processes,
which encompass research and development, procurement,
production, inventory control, sales, cost control and financial
management. During the year, the Group also extended the
same ERP system to cover newly established manufacturing
plant in Baoying Anyi New and High Technology Industrial Zone
in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The ERP system is a useful tool for
assisting the Group making effective business and management
decisions and achieving higher operational efficiency.

Prospects

Looking ahead, the Group anticipates fierce market competition
and rising production costs will both be major factors that
negatively affect the consumer electronic products industry and
the Group’s business. To alleviate adverse impact on its business
results from some of sluggish market segments in the coming
periods, the Group has made efforts to diversify its concentrated
market on consumer electronics, especially home audios into
automotive, communications, and industrial segments during
the past periods. In addition, newly launched products have
received positive market feedback, and the Group expects to see
improved business results during the second half of 2012.

For short-term being, the Group will continue to work for
renowned electronic brands as an OEM and ODM. Also, to
cope with declining trends in traditional home audio segment,
the Group plans to launch accessory products for the dynamic
market for mobile devices for home use, such as smartphone
dual docking systems for mainstream smartphones, and
Bluetooth speaker systems for mobile devices in 2012. The
Group believes that the fast growing smartphone market will
continue to create a rising demand for a docking system and
external wireless speaker solutions. Positive market response
has been received for these products, and the Group has
successfully secured orders from a renowned Korean and
Japanese consumer electronics brands.

To align with the Group’s business strategies by geographical
regions with automotive focus, its new production facilities in
Korea will be completed by early second quarter of 2012 while
Baoying production plant in Jiangsu Province, the PRC started
up its operation in the fourth quarter of 2011. The new plants
will serve demands for Korea and Japan, and northern China,
respectively, while the existing Shenzhen plants will supply
products in Southern China and overseas markets. The product
line-up consisted of tuner modules and DAB modules for car
audios, antenna modules for AVN systems, and High Pass
modules for auto toll in Korea.
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The Group is pleased to see the growing demand for traditional
types of unit electronic components from major customers.
However, the profit margin of this labour-intensive product
is weakened by the rising labour cost. The Group therefore
proactively guides its customers to switch to products
manufactured by automated production lines. This enables
the Group to reduce the sub-contracting expenses and labour
expenses, achieve higher utilisation of the Group’s production
facilities, and, ultimately, enjoy a satisfactory return in the long
run.

On the other hand, the Group has already developed the
prototype of a high efficiency heat sink substrate untilising
the Group’s existing ceramic forming, sintering, and printing
technology, and is promoting it to LED illumination and back light
unit (“BLU") customers. This highly efficient product enhances
heat sink rate for LED products such as light bulbs and LED
BLUs to sustain a longer product life at a lower product cost. The
Group is striving to market this product to renowned electronic or
illumination product manufacturer, and this product is expected
to launch in the second half of 2012.

Facing the opportunities and uncertainties in the year ahead, the
Group will continue to adjust its business strategies by actively
launching new products with better profitability and address
the ever-changing market trends in a prudent and pragmatic
way to meet changing market demand. The completion of the
Korea plant and the commencement of commercial production
will further strengthen the Group’s competitive position in
the electronic components industry. In the long term, the
Group will pay attention to the opportunities that will boost its
business development, thus generating a long term return for
shareholders.

Investor Relations

The Company values its relationship with investors, and, guided
by its management philosophy, is committed to maintaining
transparency of operational performance and strategic
development plans. The management communicates continually
with analysts and institutional investors and provides them with
up-to-date comprehensive information regarding the Company’s
development. The Company practices timely dissemination
of information and makes sure its website www.kse.com.
hk contains the most current information, including annual
reports, interim reports, announcements, monthly returns and
press releases, and is updated in a timely manner to maintain
transparency.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

As a caring corporation, the Group has been active in fulfilling its
social responsibility to the interest of all stakeholders and society.
The Group’s corporate social responsibility efforts fall into the
three following categories:

Marketplace

In the interest of shareholders, the Group have adhered to
the business objectives of contributing to the sustainable
development of the electronics industry and improving consumer
electronics to heighten product efficiency and deliver the
best end-user experience. To these ends, the Group invests
substantially in research and development and internal quality
control to ensure the continuous delivery of quality and reliable
products to customers. The Company complies with the
requirements of ISO/TS 16949:2002 on design and manufacture
of its car tuners and ISO 9001:2000 on production and servicing
of electronic products. These products include transformers,
intermediate frequency transformers, antennas, filters, coils,
coil inductors, electrical meters, dielectric filters, tuners, tuner
modules, wireless modules, switching mode power supplies,
digital tuner modules for DAB and digital amplifiers. The Group
has also frequently received customers’ performance certificates
that signified recognition of the Group’s professional procedures
and appreciation of product quality.

The Group recognises the need and the cross-fertilisation benefits
of collaboration between industry and academia. It hopes to ride
on the resources of universities and selected research institutes
to customise training courses and programmes that can help
develop the business and professional competence of its people
in successfully competing globally. In return, the Group provides
consultancy services, financial aid and internships to university
students.

Employee Health and Welfare

Caring about the health and work safety of its staff, the Group
has appropriate safety systems and processes in place to
minimise staff exposure to potentially hazardous materials or
adverse work conditions. As an equal opportunity employer, the
Group strives to provide a fair work environment to employees
and does not tolerate any form of harassment or discrimination
in respect of employment and occupation. To retain the best
talent, the Group ensures its employee remuneration packages
are competitive and that rewards are linked with performance
excellence.
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The Group also encourages employees to enroll in external job-
related courses and sponsors these initiatives when appropriate.
As part of the orientation procedure, all new employees are
required to participate in programmes on topics including
internal control and information protection, ISO and quality
management systems.

The Group also arranges regular health checks for all employees
to protect their health and therefore maintain their productivity
at work. In case of sickness, employees are protected by
comprehensive group medical insurance policies. Retirement
and comprehensive pension funds are also provided to
employees in accordance to relevant legislation.

Environment and Community

The Company complies with the requirements of ISO
14001:2004 on environmental management systems and
procedures.

The Group also continues to make sure that its products comply
with the European Union’s environmental protection guidelines
including the Directive on the Restriction of the use of certain
Hazardous Substances in Electrical Equipment (“RoHS”) for
manufacturing activities. All products manufactured by the
Group are lead-free and RoHS compliant.

The Group also encourages employees to save energy and
resources. To cut down on paper consumption, the Group
encourages double-sided printing and printing when necessary
only. The Group also relays energy-saving tips to staff members
through a daily learning program. To fulfil its commitment
to society during the year, the Company has also provided
donations to charities to help the needy.

Appreciation

On behalf of the management, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend my gratitude to all the staff for their
dedication throughout the year. At the same time, | also wish to
express my appreciation to our customers, suppliers, business
partners and shareholders for their continuing support. We will
continue to dedicate our efforts in order to generate optimum
returns for our shareholders in the long run.

Yang Jai Sung
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 30 March 2012
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We are actively fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility to the interest of all stakeholders and
society
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Code on corporate governance practices

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate
governance practices in order to enhance the shareholders’
value and stakeholders’ interests. The Company emphasises on
the quality of board of directors (the “Board”), effective internal
control, stringent disclosure practices, an ethical corporate
culture and accountability to all stakeholders under its corporate
governance principles.

Attendance record for the board and board
committee meetings in 2011

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in
the regular full Board meetings and other committee meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:

TEERERTE

ARABIEERRFONEEER  EMEH
BREEIAAMNZAEE 2R - AREMK
BEERMNERERRA 2EREYSEE
MEFE EROAIEE  BROBEESR
B BEBRTHNEEXEAR YA M zmER
EEHZEEM -

- —FEEEREESZEEREEY
H R
HE-T——F+- A=t BLFE ¥F
B ERRAEFEREENEERANER
BEHIERE RN T

No. of meetings attended/held

BREE BIRE
Audit  Remuneration Executive
Board Committee Committee Committee
g EREEE yMEES HITEES
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Yang Ho Sung REEELE 8/9 1/2 n/a n/a
TNER NNER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Jai Sung RUEERE 9/9 n/a 2/2 3/3
TE A
Mr. Lee Kyu Young TEREE 9/9 n/a n/a 3/3
TNERA TERA
Independent non-executive BYkBITES
directors
Dr. Han Byung Joon BRBEELT 719 2/2 2/2 n/a
TEA
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon SIEREEL 79 2/2 22 n/a
E
Mr. Kim Chan Su SHREE 7/9 2/2 2/2 n/a
NERA

Set out below are the summarised key components of corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company.
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The board of directors

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board,
which currently comprises seven members, coming from
diverse businesses and professional backgrounds. The
biographical details of directors are set out under the section
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 38 to 45 of this
annual report. The Board comprises non-executive director
Mr. Yang Ho Sung (Chairman), executive directors Mr. Yang
Jai Sung, Mr. Lee Kyu Young and Mr. Hong Sang Joon, and
independent non-executive directors Dr. Han Byung Joon,
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon and Mr. Kim Chan Su.

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The attendance
record of individual board members during the year set out in
the table on page 30 of this report.

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has
established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a)
setting the Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance; (c)
approving major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements. In
preparing the financial statements, the Board has ensured that (a)
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have
been adopted; (b) appropriate accounting policies have been
used and applied consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board
has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include four corporate governance related committees namely
Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee as well as one ad hoc
committee namely Independent Board Committee which is
responsible for advising the matters in relation to the continuing
connected transactions. These committees operate within
specific terms of reference as prepared by the Company and
report their work and findings to the Board regularly. The terms
of reference have been posted on the Company’s website at
www.kse.com.hk.
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Executive committee

The Board has delegated certain authorities and responsibilities
to the executive directors, including, but not limited to, the
development of strategic plans for the consideration of the
Board, implementation of the strategies and policies of the Group
as determined by the Board, monitoring of the daily operation
and financial results against plans and budgets, guiding the
Company in various corporate affairs. The Executive Committee,
formed by the executive directors from time to time and convey
the meeting when required by the committee chairman. As at
the date of this report, the Executive Committee comprised by
Mr. Yang Jai Sung (Committee Chairman), Mr. Lee Kyu Young
and Mr. Hong Sang Joon.

During the year, the Executive Committee met three times with
the attendance record of individual committee members set out
in the table on page 30 of this report.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors namely Dr. Han Byung
Joon (Committee Chairman), Dr. Kim Chung Kweon and Mr. Kim
Chan Su, and one executive director namely Mr. Yang Jai Sung.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met twice with the
attendance record of individual committee members set out in
the table on page 30 of this report.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are reviewing the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure. The Remuneration Committee regularly
reviews and guides the formulation of the Group’s remuneration
policy for directors and senior management attributable to
performance-driven compensation commitment as well as
market trend and industry norms. The details of the emoluments
of the directors are disclosed in the note 13 to the financial
statements on a namely basis.

No director can take part in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of directors and senior management
according to the Group’s employment policy, nomination policy,
remuneration policy, training and development policy and
communication policy which have been formulated and adopted
by the Remuneration Committee.
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Nomination committee

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has
not established a Nomination Committee. The nomination and
appointment of any new director(s) would be administered by
the Remuneration Committee according to the adopted selection
criteria and evaluation processes as set out in the director
nomination policy.

The objectives of this director nomination policy is to ensure
the Board is properly constituted with a balanced mix of skills,
qualifications and experiences to meet its fiduciary obligations
to the Company and its shareholders as well as to face the
Company’s current and emerging operating and strategic
challenges and opportunities.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on
27 March 2012 which comprises three independent non-
executive directors namely Dr. Kim Chung Kweon (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Han Byung Joon and Mr. Kim Chan Su and one
executive director namely Mr. Yang Jai Sung.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors, and reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to ensure fair and transparent
procedures for the appointment or re-appointment of directors.
The Nomination Committee will propose the appointment of
such candidates to the Board for consideration and the Board
will review the qualifications of the relevant candidates for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of his/her
qualifications, experience and background. The decision of
appointing a director must be approved by the Board.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors namely Mr. Kim Chan Su
(Committee Chairman), Dr. Kim Chung Kweon and Dr. Han
Byung Joon, and one non-executive director namely Mr. Yang Ho
Sung.

During the year, the Audit Committee met twice with the external
auditors without the presence of any executive director. The
complete attendance records of individual committee members
have been set out in the table on page 30 of this report.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

(1) monitoring the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

(2) reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

(3) reviewing the corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has:

(1) reviewed the 2010 annual report and accounts;

(2) reviewed the 2011 interim report and accounts;

(3) monitored the effectiveness of the financial reporting and
audit processes;

(4) reviewed the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

(5) considered and determined the scope of internal control
review for the year 2011;

(6) discussed with the management about findings of the
internal control review report prepared by external
independent professionals;

(7) conducted the discussions with external auditors regarding
the financial reporting and relevant compliance;

(8) reported all relevant matters to the Board from time to time;
and
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(9) reviewed the auditors’ remuneration and recommended 9) BREZEBAMeRERESSENEEE
the Board to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited 7}<EP%D (BE) GMEEMER AR AKX
as Company’s auditors in the year 2012, which is subject N ZZE—ZF 2% 8 - EERERK

to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM").

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and
approved the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011.

Auditors

The financial reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out
on pages 59 to 60 of this annual report.

During the fiscal year of 2011, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditors to the Group were as follows:
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Nature of services BRI M E THET
Audit services ZH RIS 495,000
Non-audit services FERZERTS

Tax services WS AR 27,000

Other services E At AR5 130,000
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interests of the Company and shareholders as a whole. All
members of the committee are the independent non-executive
directors of the Company.
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The separate roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Yang Ho Sung, and the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Yang Jai Sung, is clearly defined and has been approved
by the Board. The Chairman provides leadership of the Board,
ensures the effectiveness of the Board and oversees the
corporate development; while the Chief Executive Officer, as
head of the executive directorate, is responsible for managing
the business development and strategic planning of the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of
the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.

Directors and directors’ independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s) among members of the Board except that
Mr. Yang Jai Sung (Chief Executive Officer) is the younger brother
of Mr. Yang Ho Sung (Chairman of the Board).

The directors are given access to independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it
necessary in order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors in various
board committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

Non-executive directors have been appointed under specific
terms of employment. The appointment of Mr. Yang Ho Sung as
a non-executive director of the Company has been renewed and
with effect from 1 March 2011 for another two years, and the
appointments of Dr. Kim Chung Kweon, Dr. Han Byung Joon and
Mr. Kim Chan Su, as the independent non-executive directors
of the Company have been renewed and with effect from
11 October 2010 for another two years. All directors, including
the executive directors and non-executive directors, are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election of their directorship in
the Company as set in the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors that confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Internal controls

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers:

(1) all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

(2) risks management functions; and

(3) the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group and their training
programmes and relevant budget.

The Board has engaged external independent professionals to
conduct a review of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. An internal control review report was presented to the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the Group’s internal control
system. The system is designed in consideration of the nature of
business and the organisation structure. The system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in operational
system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The system is designed
further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain appropriate
accounting records and financial reporting, achieve efficiency of
operations and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

The Group will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review its internal control system and further
enhance its internal control as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to
appoint external independent professionals to perform internal
audit functions for the Group as the need arises. Nevertheless,
the Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function annually.

Compliance of code on corporate governance
practices

The Company is committed in achieving a high standards of
corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency and
protection of shareholders’ interest. The Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Model code for securities transactions by
directors

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
carrying out securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to all
directors of the Company, confirmed that throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011, all directors have complied with
the code provisions as set out in the Model Code. The relevant
employees who, because of their office in the Company, are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive information,
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.

Investor relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly. An explanation of the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be provided to
shareholders at the commencement of general meeting, to
ensure that shareholders are familiar with such procedures.
The forthcoming AGM will be held at Conference Hall 03,
1/F., Core Building 1, Phase 1, No. 1 Science Park East Avenue,
Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
on Friday, 25 May 2012. The notice of which will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.
Shareholders may refer to the section “Corporate Information and
Shareholders’ Calendar” of this annual report for information.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information and
makes sure its website www.kse.com.hk contains the most latest
information, including but not limited to annual reports, interim
reports, announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure transparency.
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CHAIRMAN & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
. ETRFENTES

Mr. YANG Ho Sung, aged 63, is the chairman and a non-executive
director of the Company. He is mainly responsible for providing
management advice on the corporate development of the
Group. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor’s degree in architectural
engineering from Hanyang University in Korea. He gained
34 years of experience in the electronics industry as a
director in Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Kwang Sung
Korea”) and 29 years of experience as a representative
director of Samkor Electronics Co., Ltd. Since 1992, he
has taken charge of the daily operation and management
in Kwang Sung Korea and was appointed as its
representative director. He joined the Group in 2002.
He is the elder brother of Mr. Yang Jai Sung.
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CEO & EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ITHRARFHITES

Mr. YANG Jai Sung, aged 52, is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company. He also holds positions as director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall corporate strategies
and business development of the Group, leading the Group’s business and
management. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor’s degree in law from Yonsei University
in Korea. Prior to joining the Group in 1991, he worked in Daewoo Heavy
Industries and Machinery Co., Ltd. for 9 years and has extensive experience in the
manufacturing industry. He is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Ho Sung, who is
also a director and shareholder of Kwang Sung Korea, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Relevant information are set out under the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” of this annual report.
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LEE Kyu Young
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HONG Sang Joon
s

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Mr. LEE Kyu Young, aged 49, is the chief operating officer and an executive
director of the Company. He also holds position as director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He is mainly responsible for marketing, new
business development and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering from Kwangwoon University in
Korea. He has over 22 years of experience in world-renowned international
companies including LG Electronics (Information & Communications
Business Division) and Hewlett Packard, specialised in satellite and wireless
communication. He joined the Group in 2006.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Mr. HONG Sang Joon, aged 43, is the chief financial officer and an executive
director of the Company and holds position as director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also the head of the Management Planning Group of
the Group. He is responsible for financial management and corporate planning
of the Group. Mr. Hong holds a bachelor’s degree majoring in Chinese
language and Chinese literature and minoring in business administration from
Yonsei University in Korea and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong. He is a CFA Charterholder and Certified
FRM having over 17 years of experience in investment, restructuring, strategic
planning and finance from Hansol group companies in Korea and the Group.
He joined the Group in 2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WIAEBITES

Dr. HAN Byung Joon, aged 52, has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company since October 2002. Dr. Han holds a
bachelor’s degree in engineering from Hanyang University, Korea, a master’s
degree in science from Tennessee Technological University, a master’s degree
of philosophy from Columbia University, a doctor of philosophy from Columbia
University, and graduated Advanced Management Program from Harvard
Business School, U.S.A. He has over 26 years of experience in semiconductor
research and product development in IBM, AT&T Bell Laboratories and
Anam Semiconductor, Inc. He is now executive vice president and chief
technology officer of STATS ChipPAC, Ltd. which is a leading service provider
of semiconductor design, assembly, test and distribution solutions and traded
in Singapore Stock Exchange. He also holds other directorships in iNEMI
(International Electronics Manufacturing Initiative) incorporated in Delaware
for advancing manufacturing technology, IPOS (Intellectual Properties Office of
Singapore) for fostering the creation, protection and exploitation of intellectual
properties, and STATS ChipPAC Taiwan Semiconductor Corp incorporated in
Taiwan and listed in Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEEAR

KIM Chung Kweon
wIE#

KIM Chan Su
WK

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WIAEHITES

Dr. KIM Chung Kweon, aged 56, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2002. Dr. Kim holds a
bachelor’s degree in geology from Seoul National University, Korea, a master’s
degree in business administration and a master’'s degree in accounting from
University of Washington, U.S.A. He also completed his doctorate degree
in accounting at the University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A. He has lectured at the
University of Pittsburgh, U.S.A. and at the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is now a professor at College of Business Administration
in Ewha Womans University, Korea. He also serves as a member of the IFRS
International Advisory Committee at the Financial Supervisory Service in
Korea.

TIEEEL 565 BEE _F+AREZEARARRIBILIIENTE
Lo eBIFERBNERERASMEBE LB - UREREREMNIA
ETRHERESRT2MU RS EETEMN - RITREBRTZERNETHEE
BLE4 - FEREBECZERBURBAERMBEAZBEH - 2ETHRAER
L FREBLERBHE - RN AEESEEE RBEBIFRS International
Advisory Committee Z & 8

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WIAEHITES

Mr. KIM Chan Su, aged 44, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Kim holds
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Yonsei University in Korea and is a
Certified Public Accountant in Korea. He had worked as an auditor in Samil
Accounting Corporation, PricewaterhouseCoopers in Korea for over 12 years
and currently have been working as managing director at IL SHIN Corporate
Consulting Limited.

SEARE 44 BE_STENFNAREZTALRRARBYIERNITE
Fo AR EREEH KBLEBEL BN - WABRBRHMESEA - HY
AR B Tk B @ 5T RIS FT 2 Samil Accounting Corporation {58 % 24 ki 8
+ =% » B{EIL SHIN Corporate Consulting Limited 5 EZE
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

KIM Choon Gyum

Mr. KIM Choon Gyum, aged 53, is the research and development
director of the Group. He is responsible for supervising overall
research and development operation of the Group. Mr. Kim holds
a bachelor’s degree majoring electronic engineering from Inha
University in Korea. Prior to joining the Group, he gained over 22
years of experience in electronics companies including Maxon
Electronics and Motorola Korea, specialised in radio frequency
(“RF”) products including cordless phones, mobile phones and
Bluetooth products. He joined the Group in 2008.

KO Byoung Hwan

Mr. KO Byoung Hwan, aged 45, is a director of our factory in
Shenzhen. He is responsible for overall factory management
such as production material control, production, and inventory
management of Shenzhen Kwang Sung. Mr. Ko holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Dongguk University in
Korea. He has over 18 years’ experience in sales and marketing
of electronic products and management. He joined the Group in
1994.

KIM Yeon Jun

Mr. KIM Yeon Jun, aged 46, is a general manager and the
head of Infomedia Solution Sales Group of the Group. He
is responsible for overall business operation of the Group’s
information solution products. Mr. Kim holds a bachelor’s degree
majoring mass communication from Korea University in Korea.
Prior to joining the Group, he gained 18 years of experience in IT
industry. He joined the Group in 2009.

LEE Don Gi

Mr. LEE Don Gi, aged 48, is a general manager and the head
of Automotive Electronics Sales Group of the Group. He is
responsible for overall business operation of the Group’s
automotive electronic products. Mr. Lee graduated from Korea
Port Logistics High School. He has over 24 years of experience in
electronics industry including 18 years in Kwang Sung Korea. He
joined the Group in 2005.
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LIM Hee Jun

Mr. LIM Hee Jun, aged 38, is a chief engineer and the head
of Wireless Component Business Group of the Group. He is
responsible for overall business operations of the Group’s
wireless component products. Mr. Lim was the industrial
undergraduate in mechatronics engineering from Korea
Polytechnics College in Korea. He has over 17 years of
experience in electronics industry including 13 years in
Kwang Sung Korea. He joined the Group in 2007.

YANG Jae Eun

Mr. YANG Jae Eun, aged 48, is a principal engineer and the
head of Hardware Research & Development Group of the
Group. He is responsible for hardware development of the
products in the Group. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor’'s degree
in Electronic Engineering from Kumoh National Institute of
Technology in Korea. He has over 17 years of experience in
electronic industry. He joined the Group in 2007.

YOON Yong Seob

Mr. YOON Yong Seob, aged 48, is a principal engineer and
the head of Software Research & Development Group of the
Group. He is responsible for of the software solutions of the
products in the Group. Mr. Yoon holds a master’'s degree
in Electronic Engineering from Kwangwoon University in
Korea. He has over 22 years of software design experience
in wireless communication and mobile phones industry. He
joined the Group in 2009.

CHOI Chang Hyun

Mr. CHOI Chang Hyun, aged 50, is a general manager and
the head of Purchasing & Material Management Group of
the Group. He is responsible for purchasing and material
management of the Group in Korea. He has over 20 years of
industrial experience. He joined the Group in 2002.
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SUH Jin Won

Mr. SUH Jin Won, aged 44, is a general manager and director
of our factory in Baoying, Jiangsu, China. He is responsible
for overall factory management such as production material
control, production, and inventory management of our factory in
Baoying. Mr. Suh holds a bachelor’s degree in law from Dongguk
University in Korea. He has over 15 years of experience in
electronic industry. He joined the Group in 1996.

SUNG Soo Earn

Mr. SUNG Soo Earn, aged 53, is a general manager and the
head of Resource Management Group of the Group. He is
responsible for overall research and development planning and
control of the Group. Mr. Sung holds a bachelor’'s degree in
electronics and communications engineering from Kwangwoon
University in Korea. Prior to joining the Group, he gained over
23 years of experience in developing electronic devices such
as PA modules and PA MMIC, and RF modules mainly from LG
Electronics (Information & Communications Business Division).
He joined the Group in 2007.
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The Group will march forward by
delivering new products for emerging
high growth applications
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Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited

XEBTERARAR

Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year by business and geographical segments is set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

FETRKEERREERARE"2——F
A=+—AILFEr EREHHHRE2E -

FEXK

ARAZEBEBRBENBEEE T - I
BRAIZ EBEXH REMFRENPBHREM
19 ARBAFEEBREDHBRRA 2D
EI NI BRERMEET ©

FREFREER

RAFRFEN  BFRASEEEF RHEEED
PIIEAKEEERRBERCERNT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

HREEHAEEI
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer S TN 7.20%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFE 28.07%
The largest supplier SAEER 7.27%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR HFERE B 23.33%

Kwang Sung Korea, a substantial shareholder of the Company
and beneficially owned by certain directors and their associates,
is one of the customers and subcontractors of the Group.
Further details are set out in the sections “Directors’ Interests in
Contracts” and “Connected Transactions” in the Report of the
Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the
directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

BENERARANTIERR AETEEK
BEZBMBATERES  YRAEEEP R
MIEZ— - AAFFENEZTEREEANE
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Results and appropriations

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 61 to 157
of this annual report.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 June 2011 (2010: Nil). The Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: Nil).

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 67 to
68 of this annual report.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1,030,500 (2010: HK$2,510,000).

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Bank loans and other borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2011 all set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

Share capital and securities in issue

During the year, no new ordinary share has been issued by the
Company. As at the date of 31 December 2011, the Company
maintained 323,896,933 issued ordinary shares.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the company’s
listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2011.
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Directors

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive director:

Mr. Yang Ho Sung (Chairman)

Executive directors:

Mr. Yang Jai Sung
Mr. Lee Kyu Young
Mr. Hong Sang Joon (appointed on 20 January 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Han Byung Joon
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon
Mr. Kim Chan Su

The biographical details of the directors are set out under the
section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yang Ho Sung and Mr. Yang Jai Sung shall retire
from the Board by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Sang Joon shall hold office until the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the AGM.

Directors’ service contracts

The duration of all service contracts signed by the directors of
the Company is two years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election of their directorship in the Company as set in the
Company’s Articles of Association.

No director of the Company, who proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM, has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

Directors’ remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board of the Company with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures

As at the date of this report, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code (collectively “discloseable interests”) were as
follows:

(1) Interests in issued shares of the company

Beneficial
owner
Name of director EEHA BEREEA
Mr. Yang Jai Sung REESLAE 114,582,000
Mr. Hong Sang Joon RS A 100,000
(appointed on (R=ZZT—
20 January 2012) —F—H
—t+HE
=)

Note: Mr. Yang Jai Sung and his relatives are approximately interested
in 79.5% of the issued share capital of Kwang Sung Korea and
therefore Mr. Yang Jai Sung is deemed or taken to be interested
in these ordinary shares which are beneficially owned by Kwang
Sung Korea under the definition of SFO.

(2) Interests in underlying shares of the company

The directors and/or the chief executive of the Company
had been granted options under the Company’s share
option scheme, details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates had any other discloseable interests as
required.
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Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 16 June 2003
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, from time
to time during the scheme period at their discretion, to invite
employees, directors, consultants or advisors of the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
purpose of this scheme is to provide incentives and rewards
to employees and eligible persons for their contributions to the
Group. The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years ending on 15 June 2013, after which no
further options can be granted. The exercise price of each share
option is the highest of (1) the nominal value of the shares; (2)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; and (3) the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The options are exercisable
progressively between one to three years from the date of grant
and will expire at the end of a period to be notified by the Board
to each option holder upon the grant of option, and in any event,
such period shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the share option scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
Subject always to the above overall limit, the directors may grant
options under the share option scheme, generally and without
further authority, in respect of such number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
share option scheme not exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 18 May 2005, being the date
passing the resolution regarding the refreshment of general limit
of options. For the purpose of calculating the above, options
lapsed in accordance with the share option scheme shall not be
counted.

The total number of ordinary shares available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2011 was 31,330,000
shares which represented 9.67% of the issued share capital of
the Company at 31 December 2011. In respect of the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the scheme, the total
number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue, unless
approved by the shareholders in general meeting.
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During the year 2011, no further new option has been granted
under the share option scheme by the directors of the Company
and therefore no share option of the Company being outstanding.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note 35
to the financial statements.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (other than
the directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company were as follows:
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Madam Yang Kang Mi Young (note 1) PEERTLT (HFD 174,082,000 Interest of spouse 53.75%
[P
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. KABHAEE 59,500,000 Beneficial owner 18.37%

Mr. Kent C. McCarthy Kent C. McCarthy %t 4
(“Mr. McCarthy”) (note 2) ([McCarthy 4 1)
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Jayhawk Private Equity Fund II, LP Jayhawk Private
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Notes:

(1)  Madam Yang Kang Mi Young, the wife of Mr. Yang Jai Sung, was
deemed to be interested in these ordinary shares in which Mr. Yang
Jai Sung was deemed or taken to be interested under the definition of
SFO.

(2)  Mr. McCarthy was deemed or taken to be interested in these ordinary
shares through his indirect 100% control in Jayhawk PEF. These
interests were fully duplicated by those beneficially owned by Jayhawk
PEF.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules up to the date of this annual report.

Directors’ interests in contracts

Kwang Sung Korea is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Yang Jai Sung and his relatives were interested in these
arrangements as a shareholder holding approximately 79.5%
interest in the share capital of Kwang Sung Korea.

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements under
the heading “Material Related Party Transactions”, there were
no other contracts of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Mr. Yang Jai Sung, a
director of the Company, is both the shareholder and director of
Kwang Sung Korea, whose businesses compete or are likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses. The
principal businesses of Kwang Sung Korea are as follows:

(1) Research, design and product development of electronic
components and related products and manufacturing
of electronic components for electronic appliances and
communication equipment through the factory operated
by Kwang Sung Korea (the “KSK Factory”) exclusively for
orders placed directly with Kwang Sung Korea and to be
sold in the Korean market but subject to the terms and
limited to the scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking
and the Research and Development Service Agreement.

ST
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BEOIME - BREGASRERERELERRSK
WRBEE G2 ZS BB Ex

(2)  McCarthy 5 43 8 #2126 Jayhawk PEF 100% fi&
B MERAIERAEEEZS LT BR 2R -
ZEfETEE Jayhawk PEF B EEERE L »

B EXFRBEEN  ARTLESELMES
SRS RS 60 E 336 AT B
BN S -

ABRFRE

TWEARBAILRAEHNZER LA ARES
Pl BERNFRABA/IL AR —EER
ETRAFTERKE R RFFEKRF -

EEC kR

BENERARAZEIERR - REEXAER
HBBAE S ARE N 2RALT79.5%
ZEBCERR - MRZFLHFTEARER -

BRI HRRMEISERRBEALRS | —HifT
WEEIN RAFEHEREINANFEAER
R NARISHEMB AR Y BRI EAER
BARRESERERSAMEREEEA TR
BH e

EENHFRUERE 2 ER

REE-ZT—F+-_A=+—HBLEFE" &
RAEERAEERLERBENEZRERERE
= MBEEEZEBEXAIESHASEE
BHEKEERXEERS  BENEZTBER
LN

() EFLHERBBEERZIHR Rt REm
F% - WEBBBCERE ZHE R
MERMZEIR ([BREXETRK])  BE
ERBRENCEREZCARE  JUEER
FBAREBZET LN RREEMSH
& R T AGE R SR T I RIS 15 5%
RN E ek 2 SO0 PR I -



Annual Report 2011
T —FFR

(2) Sales, marketing, purchasing and distribution of electronic
components for electronic appliances and communication
equipment, but subject to the terms and limited to the
scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking and the
Commission Agreement.

In relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, each of Kwang Sung Korea, KS-
Tech Group Corporation, and Mr. Yang Jai Sung has entered into
the Deed of Undertaking in favour of the Group to the effect that
for so long as Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries,
Mr. Yang Jai Sung and/or the companies controlled by
Mr. Yang Jai Sung are beneficially interested, directly and
indirectly, whether individually or taken together, in 20% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company, Kwang Sung
Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will not, and Kwang Sung Korea
and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will procure that none of its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) and the companies controlled by him
(other than the Group), respectively, will engage or otherwise be
involved in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with any of the businesses carried out
by any member of the Group from time to time (the “Restricted
Business”) in any of the regions in which the Group is engaged
in and undertakes the Restricted Business (such regions include
Korea and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).

Kwang Sung Korea has agreed to first refer all customers’ orders
of electronic components production received by Kwang Sung
Korea from its customers (subject to certain conditions) and
the results and/or products developed by the product design
and research and development centre of Kwang Sung Korea
and the KSK Factory and/or any intellectual property right in or
arising from such results and/or products to the Group on terms
in accordance with the Deed of Undertaking, the Commission
Agreement and the Research and Development Service
Agreement, respectively.

According to the supplementary Deed of Undertaking effective
20 September 2005, KS-Tech Group Corporation is no longer a
party to the Deed of Undertaking as it is no longer beneficially
owned by Kwang Sung Korea.

Pursuant to the supplementary deed inter alia, for so long as
Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries and Mr. Yang
Jai Sung and/or any of the companies controlled by him are
beneficially interested, directly or indirectly, whether individually
or taken together, in 10% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company, Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will
not, and Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will procure
that none of its subsidiaries (other than the Group) and the
companies controlled by him (other than the Group), respectively,
will engage or otherwise be involved in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
any of the Restricted Business in any of the regions in which the
Group engages in and undertakes the Restricted Business (such
regions include Korea and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).
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The transactions with Kwang Sung Korea are set out in the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”. There has been no
material change in directors’ interests in any competing business
subsequent to 31 December 2011.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Cconnected transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with Kwang Sung Korea, which constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “connected transactions”) as defined in the
Listing Rules.

(1) In the ordinary course of business, the Group sold
electronic components to Kwang Sung Korea for resale
to ultimate customers. These transactions were entered
into on normal commercial terms and on prices and terms
comparable to the prevailing market rate or practice.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, sales of
electronic components to Kwang Sung Korea amounted to
HK$410,238 (2010: HK$1,109,000).

(2) Pursuant to a Commission Agreement dated 4 November
2008, Kwang Sung Korea referred a number of customers
to the Group. These customers place orders directly with
the Group and upon completion of the production, the
Group sold the electronic components to the customers
directly. The Group paid Kwang Sung Korea a referral
commission which represents not more than 2% of the
total sales to these customers. The referral commission rate
was comparable to the referral commission rates payable
by the Group to independent third parties and was on
terms comparable to the prevailing market rate or practice.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, referral
commission paid/payable by the Group to Kwang Sung
Korea amounted to HK$494,265 (2010: HK$626,000).

(3) Pursuant to a Production Outsourcing Agreement dated 4
November 2008, Kwang Sung Korea has agreed to produce
the Products for the Company in ordinary and usual course
of business, on normal commercial terms comparable to
the prevailing market rate and practice after arms length
negotiations. Payment of the production outsourcing fees
will be made in a manner agreed by the Group and Kwang
Sung Korea.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, production
outsourcing fees paid/payable by the Group to Kwang Sung
Korea amounted to HK$1,395,931 (2010: HK$2,300,000).

At the extraordinary general meeting of 5 December 2008,
the Company has sought approval from the independent
shareholders of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions up to the limits specified in the new caps for each of
the three financial years ended 31 December 2011 mentioned
below:

Transactions X5

REE-_F——F+t-A=t—-ALF
B AEBEN/ BN TREXEZAE
SN EMA13959318 T (ZT—T4F :
2,300,000/ 7T) ©

TEN\F+ - ATARTZBRERIK
RARBRB LB E B TR
5 SEBAA FXMABE S ——%F
A=+—B L= EMBEE 2 R

~

n=
E/
_|_

Annual cap on the aggregate value
of the transactions for
financial years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+—HL

MHREEXZREZRZF LR
2010 2011 2012
—2-2§ —2--5 CZ2--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATT TAT TET

Sales of Products by the Group AEBHEEZSER

to Kwang Sung Korea TEEE 2
Commission payable by the Group REERBEENE
to Kwang Sung Korea TN K PN

for sales orders placed by the customers I ERTEEN
referred by Kwang Sung Korea BELE RS

AEEEMNERE
ZHIBEEER

Production outsourcing fees payable
by the Group to Kwang Sung Korea

The directors, including the independent non-executive directors,
of the Company have reviewed the connected transactions and
confirmed that:

(1) the connected transactions have been entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms (to the extent
that there are comparable transactions), or, where
there are no sufficient comparable transactions to
judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) on the relevant agreement terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of independent
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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(2) the connected transactions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2011 have been conducted such that
the aggregate amount for each type of the transactions has
not exceeded the respective caps set out above.

The Company’s auditors have confirmed in a letter to the Board
that:

(i)  the connected transactions had received the approval of
the Company’s board of directors;

(i) there was an agreement in place governing each selected
transaction; and

(i) the connected transactions had not exceeded the
respective caps as set out above.

Retirement schemes

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 158 of
this annual report.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Yang Ho Sung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2012
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Independent Auditor's Report
B AR S

{Z7kpHa
ShineWin 4

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F.,The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
KWANG SUNG ELECTRONICS H.K. CO. LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Kwang Sung
Electronics H.K. Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 61
to 157, which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: PO3224

Hong Kong
30 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

——

2011

2

Notes HK$’000

PiEE FERT

Turnover —E 20 8 557,551
Cost of sales SHERA (536,487)
Gross profit EF 21,064
Other income and gains A R as 9 8,982
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAX (17,668)
Administrative expenses THRAX (19,845)
Research and development expenses 2552 (34,828)
Other operating expenses HEge g (15,094)
Finance costs BhE KA 10 —
(Loss) profit before taxation BRBAT (B8) &R (57,389)
Taxation HiIa 11 7,311
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BFB) E#=F 12 (50,078)

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:

BEARFE (BR) #F

(49,714)
(364)

(50,078)

Owners of the Company ARIER A
Non-controlling interests SRR
(Loss) earnings per share gk (BE) 87
Basic and diluted BEXRREE

16 HK cents &1l

(15.35)

2010
—E-TE
HK$'000
TR

680,481
(587,618)

92,863

8,552
(21,308)
(19,644)
(35,658)
(10,398)
(389)

14,018
(6,325)

7,693

8,087
(394)

7,693

HK cents 781l

2.50
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising on
Surplus on revaluation of land

Deferred tax
Surplus on revaluation of land

net of deferred tax

translation of foreign operations

and buildings held for own use

and buildings held for own use,

2011
—E——F
Notes HK$'000
Mo FET
AEE (&H8) =5 (50,078)
Hip 2k
R E B INERS T E £
ZIEHZR
EhFEE AL RIESF
2Bk
BLEFEE AL MIETF

Z B8R EMBRETENIA

Other comprehensive income AFEEEMEEMNE

for the year, net of tax EHRTRIA 4,811
Total comprehensive AEER2E (BAX)

(expense) income for the year gyt o] (45,267)
Total comprehensive EAAEE2E (BAX)

(expense) income for the year U= 4A%E

attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE PN (44,903)
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 2 (364)

(45,267)

2010
—ZT-ZF
HK$'000
FHBT

7,693

7,851

6,470
(2,609)

3,861

11,712

19,405

19,799
(394)

19,405
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As at 31 December 2011 R=Z——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
=& —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E I =Y 17 173,250 134,364
Investment properties EYHE 18 29,930 5,100
Goodwill BES 20 - 5,857
Club memberships SHEE 21 600 600
Intangible assets | EE 22 17,623
Investments in equity securities BAFEFHIEE 23 =
Deposits for purchase of property, EEYE  WRERRE
plant and equipment Z1EE 6 164
220,113 163,708
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 24 64,009 82,673
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 K E AL BR K 25 150,239 140,070
Amounts due from shareholders FEUPIE RN IA 33 8,478 9,946
Bank balance and cash RITHEBNIRS 26 110,182 133,505
332,908 366,194
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FETE 5 R EAMERFK 27 102,499 84 456
Tax payables FEFRIR 34,134 43,286
Derivative financial liabilities PTETHARE 31 5,908 -
Bank borrowing — due within one year ~ $R1TEE - —FRZ|H 28 73,962 13,844
216,503 141,586
Net current assets REEEFE 116,405 224,608
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBERS 336,518 388,316
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As at 31 December 2011 R=Z——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BRE FET FAT
Capital and reserves EXRf#iE
Share capital &7 29 32,390 32,390
Reserves (Fess 292,601 338,972
Equity attributable to owners ZiN/NEIE 2 =N
of the Company FE(E R 324,991 371,362
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 2 2,258 2,622
Total equity RS 327,249 373,984
Non-current liabilities ERBERB
Derivative financial liabilities PTHEERAR 31 - 6,452
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIERE 32 9,269 7,880

9,269 14,332

336,518 388,316

The financial statements on pages 61 to 157 were approved and FOLEFISTB2MBHRERENRTE—_F=
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2012 A=+ HBEESeIERKEREIT LA

and are signed on its behalf by: BEREREE
Yang Jai Sung REE
Director EF

Hong Sang Joon HHE

Director =
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As at 31 December 2011 R=Z——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
BRE FH&x FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN 17 — 33,374
Investment properties B 18 - 5,100
Interests in subsidiaries AN P 19 303,366 94,895
Club memberships SR 21 600
Intangible assets mHEE 22 10,200
Investments in equity securities MEARBHILE 23 =
Deposits for purchase of property, BB « WS RRE
plant and equipment ZES 164
303,649 144,333
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 = 82,673
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K B AR SR 25 23,380 139,924
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU BT B A RIZRIE 19 21,592 10,719
Amounts due from shareholders FEU I SRR IA 33 8,478 9,946
Bank balance and cash IRITHEBRNIRS 26 = 131,740
53,450 375,002
Current liabilities RBAS
Trade and other payables BB 5 R EAIRRK 27 83,196
Tax payables FERI TR 43,277
Bank borrowing — due within one year ~ $R1TEE - —FE R 2| 28 13,758
32,452 140,231
Net current assets REBEEFE 20,998 234,771
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBAERS 324,647 379,104
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As at 31 December 2011 R=Z——F+_-_A=+—H

2011 2010
—ZT——F —E—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ih=a T FET
Capital and reserves EXRf#iE
Share capital &7 29 32,390 32,390
Reserves & 30 292,257 335,158
Total equity B 324,647 367,548
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Derivative financial liabilities PTEERBEE 31 6,452
Deferred tax liabilities BETIBAE 32 5,104
11,556
324,647 379,104

The financial statements on pages 61 to 157 were approved and FOLEFISTBEZHMBHRERERZTE—Z_F=
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2012 A=THEZEESHERBERT  WAHT

and are signed on its behalf by: BEEREXEZ
Yang Jai Sung RER
Director EF

Hong Sang Joon HHE

Director 2
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEERER

an\
As at 31 December 2011 R=F——F+=-_A=+—H
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRIERAEL
Properties
revaluation Non-
Share Share Other Contribution ~ reserve ~ Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reseve  reserve ME  reseve  resenve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
RE  ROBE HtEE HERE EMEE iR EXRGE  REE Nt FERES ag
(notea)  (noteb)  (notec)  (noted)  (notee)  (notef)
(aka)  (Kib)  (Wike) (k) (Wske) (R
HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKFO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Thr TEér TRt TExr  TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
At 1 January 2010 R=5-F£-f-A 32390 58566 301 9946 18386 8434 (19088) 242628 351563 3016 354579
Total comprehensive rEE2ENG (%) 88
income (expense) for the year - - - - 3861 - 7851 8,087 19,799 (394) 19405
Transfer fet - - - - - 942 - (942) - -
At 31 December 2010 RZF-FETZA=t-H 330 58566 301 9946 22047 9376 (11,37) 249773 371,362 2622 373984
Total comprehensive rEE2ENG (F%) 88
income (expense) for the year - - - - 8% - 3916 (49714)  (44.903) (364)  (45267)
Transfer 1 - - - - - 839 - (839 - -
Reduction of contributions HIRRRRILE (HE110)
from shareholders (note 11(0) - - - (1469 - - - - (1468) - (1469
At 31 December 2011 RIE—F+-A=t-H 3230 5856 301 84718 23142 10215 (7321) 199220 324991 2258 327,49
Notes: MizE -
(a)  Share premium (a) K=E

The application of the share premium is governed by section 48B of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Other reserve represents the acquisition/disposal of partial equity
interests of subsidiaries with minority shareholders without changes in
control. Details of the accounting policy are set out in note 3(a).

Contribution reserve represents contributions from shareholders for
indemnity liabilities payable for periods prior to 30 June 2003. Details

(b)  Other reserve
(c)  Contribution reserve

are set out in note 38(a)(ii).
(d)

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in note 3(e).

(b)

(c)

(d)

Binm Bz REREBRAIGDIE 48B KR E

HAtif# S

H bR D BIERR RS / HENB

B 170 PSS o 0 0 f5R 4% (A s SR D o E..#BZ
KB MITE3() °

HE A

HERBERRA-FTZ
ZENRBEAELE -

=FANA=+HAEM
BRI K38 -
MEEMRHE

W E AR ETIEMIE () T8 A s EE ALt
BT 2 BT BERRS KRIE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEREDR

As at 31 December 2011 N=—ZE——F+=-_A=+—H

(e)

(U]

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws
applicable to wholly-foreign owned investment enterprises, subsidiaries
of the Company operating in the PRC are required to set up a general
reserve fund and appropriate at least 10% of respective company’s
annual profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the general reserve fund until the balance of
the reserve equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund can be
used to make good losses and to convert into paid-up capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
Company’s branch in Korea. At 1 January 2008 onwards, the
functional currency of the Korea Branch has been changed from
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) to Korean Won (“KRW”) following the
Korea Branch has substantially increased its trading activities in the
Korean market. Sales and purchases conducted in the Korean market
are denominated and settled in KRW. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(p).

(e)

()

EERE

RBERNIIEBELCE 2HEARKAE ([
Bl AR ARRNHEZEEZHBRRFHER
YREFERES  WIEERRHZD10% 2 FEHR
BALA (b Bl et 5 A R AGPIETE) BA—&
BEES  BEERBERESEZIMEARLR R
ﬁ%*Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%}é&@?ﬁﬁﬁﬁi
BN o

BE 5 b e

B A REA RRE AR REE S R EME
BREEECERZR B_FTZT/N\F-—H—H
i AREE D QR E AR NENEE TS
NE2E 58 ARARBEHERNRAZ
aeERmET (DEx)) BanEE ([7E)) -
REEMSEMETZESBABRENEREE - Z
fFEBARIR I 5 3(p) TV & RTBUR R ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-ﬁ Iﬁﬁl)lbiﬂj—%

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F = -TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& TEE
(Loss) profit before taxation BriAT (E18) m Al (57,389) 14,018
Adjustments for: RTINS IBEL AR -
Interest income M EHA (526) (718)
Finance costs BB R - 389
Depreciation e 13,452 16,791
Amortisation of intangible assets T A EE R 1,168 1,145
Written off of club membership MsH 2 £E - 73
Impairment loss recognised on FEWE 5 K B {th BR FRFERR
trade and other receivables BEEE 156 2,772
Impairment loss recognised REEZAREEE
on goodwill 5,857 =
Decrease in fair value of PTESmAaE
derivative financial liabilities Z R BERD (544) (939)
Increase in fair value of WEMEZ A EEEN
investment properties (2,586) (1,000)
Allowance for inventories FEBE 21,121 2,013
Reversal of allowance for inventories [o B 1E B B = (1,834)
Gain on disposal of property, HEMSE - #e3 MR EIRE
plant and equipment (3,140) (1,707)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised — BI#FEUNE 5 & H b BE X FER
on trade and other receivables ZIREEE (853) (160)
Net foreign exchange loss PE H 1R F 5 2,505 1,845
Operating cash flows before LBESFER
movements in working capital BB RE (20,779) 32,688
Increase in restricted bank deposit PR &I 3R 1T IR FR % A0 (472) -
Increase in inventories FEE (2,457) (25,752)
(Increase) decrease in trade JEUE 5 R E A BRZ (3E40) &
and other receivables (5,167) 9,504
Increase (decrease) in trade FENE S REMBEZIE I ()
and other payables 18,043 (1,081)
Cash (used in) generated Qs (A ME2IRE
from operations (10,832) 15,359
Tax reserve certificates purchased EEERNS (4,305) (9,333)
Interest paid ERFLE - (389)
Korean Corporate Income Tax paid EHE&I&%FE S (665) =
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BB EER (671) (4,907)
NET CASH (USED IN) Re&EE (FTA) s
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEEFE (16,473) 730
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Interest received B U E 526 718
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE  #BRNE
plant and equipment F{S 50E 3,140 2,388
Acquisition of property, ity e Y e
plant and equipment (72,933) (62,699)
Increase in deposits for purchase of BB WS
property, plant and equipment I - (164)
Repayment from shareholders IRREERIR - 646
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHFTAZESFEE
ACTIVITIES (69,267) (59,111)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHShEaR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETE
Repayment of bank borrowing ERRITER
Interest paid EAFE
New bank loans raised FTIRRITEE
NET CASH FROM BMEEHMERESFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERASEEY 2RO FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BRZBEERATCEEY
AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ER# &5

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-BA=+—HzZHE
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented bank REE&ZEEY
balances and cash DERTESRRES

2011
—e——%
HK$’000
FHT

(13,844)
(1,228)
77,035

61,963

(23,777)

133,505

(18)

109,710

2010
—E-TE
HK$'000
TR

(19,202)

32,567

13,365

(45,016)

179,386

(865)

133,505
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Supy e DR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The directors of the Company do not
consider any company to be the ultimate holding company
of the Company, however, the directors of the Company
consider the ultimate controlling party of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) to
be Mr. Yang Jai Sung.

The functional currency of the Company is KRW. The
functional currencies for its certain subsidiaries are
Renminbi (“RMB”) and KRW. For the purposes of
presenting the financial statements, the Group adopted
HK$ as its presentation currency as its shares are listed in
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are mainly the manufacture and sale of
electronic components and research and development.
The details of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19.

——

—RER

ARRBNEBEMAL - ERODRE B
BRZAAR AR ([BFT]) £ - A
Al M EE R ERER AN FRL
NEER—EHWE - RAREFIREM
RAEVR/ARRRZRBERRR] - AT - K
RAEEEREERERAEENRENE
RA) (AR [AEE ) 2 &BIERA °

ARR 2N ER RRE HETHEA
AN ERRARE (ARE]) ki
cLEFIFBHAME - ARAEELZ
BRONEE LT  BHEBETREZIE
M o

AEBCFEXEKREERMEEET T
% EMBARZEBERETEARER
HEBTRERAE HEEMBAFZ
FHIBEAMIEEL9 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR ERMRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &2 - ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010

Amendment to HKFRS1 Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”)
24 (as revised in 2009)

Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to
HK (International
Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee
(“IFRIC"))-Interpretation
(“Int”) 14

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior years
and/or the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

TRAVHTE] RAEEET H B MR EE
Al ([FEMBHHREER )

EREERN  AEBRRMN T EESE
AR (EBRIEAR ) BH2#HE
RSB BRTGRES %8 -

ERVBHREER RZT—TFY
ZAERT BB TSRS 2R
2 B
ERVBHREER HERXRNEEH
F 1R 2IERT LEER MBS BRS
HEAERE 7 5%
WEARZ
BR#E
B gL BN THE
(F%C/% T
AR |) 52458
(R=ZZTNhF
KAEET)
BB GFT R el grdsa |

325/ 2ERT

%C (IF%\WW( REEEERKZEN

TREZE®) 3B
- ﬁ'ﬂi% 14 5%
ZAERT
E ( U B B 745 ARG T AHBR & B
HREZEeE) A
- aﬁ%% 1958

FEF _EIRE] RAZHER] & B I 15 S 22 R
HAKRBEAMBEFEZHBHERER
R RARFRETE BRELBEAY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 12
HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Severe Hyperinflations and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters'

First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards —
Government Loans?

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements®
Joint Arrangement?

Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities®
Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of [tems of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets*

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial
Statements®

Investments in Associate and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine?

——
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR ERMRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

1

2

3

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
E?féi;tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
E?féi;[ive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
E}gégfive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014,

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.

2.

RN REERIEEMBREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

— The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value
of a financial liability (designated as at fair value
through profit or loss) attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact from the application of new standard
on the results and the financial positions of the Group and
the Company.

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

2.

——
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

Key requirements of these fives standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new
definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the invests to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Ventures. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joints arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structure
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are
applied early at the same time.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1
January 2013. The application of these five standards
may have significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements. The application of
HKFRS 10 may result in the Group no longer consolidating
some of its investees, and consolidating investees that were
not previously consolidated (e.g. the Group’s investment in
associates may become the Group’s subsidiaries based on
the new definition of control and the related guidance in
HKFRS 10). However, the directors have not yet performed
a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of these
Standards and hence have not yet quantified the extent of
the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation,

joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013
and that the application of the new Standard may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and properties, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(@) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a
subsidiary is attributed to owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill had been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount of the units,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date which is regarded
as their cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Any revaluation increase arising from
revaluation of intangible assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reserves a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognise in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an intangible asset is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
All regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.

Investments in securities held for trading, including
marketable securities, are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period, the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(h)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group and the Company commit to purchase/sell
the investments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
shareholders, cash and cash equivalents (see note
3(1)) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are in addition
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
are considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on investments in equity securities
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form as integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derivative financial liabilities

Derivative is initially recognised at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and is
subsequently remeasured to its fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowing are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option
to repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a
residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and the Group retains control), the Group allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognised and the part that
is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated at
their revalued amounts, being their fair values at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation:

° freehold land and buildings; and

o land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under
an operating lease (see note 3(g)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 3(h)).

(e)

——
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising
on revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revaluated asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation on revaluated buildings is recognised in
profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the properties revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Depreciation on other items of property, plant and
equipment is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction
for production or for its own use purpose are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets

are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
impairment loss between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer
is recognised in profit or loss. Any appreciation of
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to such activities. Because
of the nature of the Group’s and the Company’s
research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development stage
of the project when the remaining development
costs are immaterial. Hence both research costs
and development costs are generally recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFGFEXR (B)
(Continued)
(g8) Leasing (g) 7HE

RBRER S A EBRE D E R

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group or the Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group or the Company as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group and the Company assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group and the Company,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company review the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group and the
Company estimate the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
standard.

(h)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

()

(k)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are
stated in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(h)).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC and Korean local government
defined contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and Korea and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of services to the Group
in order to be eligible for long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Employment Ordinance”) in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable
to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &2 - ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group and the Company'’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group and
the Company is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Revenue recoghition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZ=—F——F+_—_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(iii) Scrap sales

Scrap sales is recognised when the goods are

delivered to the customers.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease terms.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operation are translated into
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expense are
translated at the average rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(under the heading of exchange reserve).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which item is
derecognised.

(p)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGFHEX (&
(Continued)
() Government grants (r) BUFF4EED
Government grants are not recognised until there EAREERAARSIEMRESEST
is reasonable assurance that the Group and the BT BN 2 B AR A R A 215 2 &
Company will comply with the conditions attaching to Bh& - BUSHHEBN T & T LARER -

(s)

(t)

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the related assets.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see note 3(h)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated and the
Company’s statement of financial position comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits as defined above.

(s)

BT BN TR BC B B2 - AR B
BRI B E 2 BN AR R
X ZHER - RIBEETHER - BRI
WEEEZBFME - IR E W5
RRFRERNER SR EEREEZ
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
construction of any qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

3.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating units and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. Impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$5,857,000 (2010:
Nil) has been recognised for the year. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2011 and the
details of the impairment test are disclosed in note
20.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group and the Company review the carrying
amounts of the assets at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of
impairment is identified, management prepares
discounted future cash flow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value-in-use and
provide for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumption adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment
loss and affect the Group’s and the Company’s net
asset value. At 31 December 2011, the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment of the
Group is approximately HK$173,250,000 (2010:
HK$134,364,000). The carrying value of property,
plant and equipment of the Company is nil for the
year (2010: HK$ 33,374,000).

4.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables
are assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgment
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. An increase or decrease in the
above impairment loss would affect the profit in the
year and in future years. Impairment of approximately
HK$156,000 (2010: HK$2,772,000) has been
recognised for the year. At 31 December 2011, the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables of
the Group were approximately HK$112,339,000
and HK$37,900,000 (2010: HK$105,870,000
and HK$34,200,000) respectively; trade and
other receivables of the Company for the year are
approximately nil and HK$23,380,000 (2010:
HK$105,749,000 and HK$34,175,000) respectively.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the
intangible assets. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group and the Company to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the patents
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. No impairment loss was recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010. At 31 December 2011, the carrying value
of patents of the Group is HK$16,327,000 (2010:
HK$17,623,000); the carrying value of patents of the
Company is nil for the year (2010: HK$10,200,000).

4.

——
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(e)

Allowance for inventories

The Group perform regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, expected future consumption
and management judgment. Based on this review,
write down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below
their estimated net realisable value. Significant
judgment is required. In making this judgment,
the Company evaluates, amongst other factors,
the duration and extent and the means by which
the amount will be recovered. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and past
experience in sales of similar products. It could
change significantly as a result of changes. Due to
changes in technology and market conditions, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and
profit or loss could be affected by differences in this
estimation. During the year, the Group wrote down
of inventories approximately HK$21,121,000 (2010:
HK$179,000). At 31 December 2011, the net book
value of inventories of the Group is approximately
HK$64,009,000 (2010: HK$82,673,000); the net
book value of inventories of the Company is nil for the
year (2010: HK$82,673,000)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group and
the Company carefully evaluate tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Details of taxation are set
out in note 11.

4.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(f)

(8)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can
be utilised, management’s judgment is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Details
of deferred tax are set out in note 32.

Fair value of derivative financial liabilities

As disclosed in note 31, the fair value of the derivative
component of the liabilities at the measurement
date was determined using option pricing models.
Application of option pricing models requires the
Group and the Company to estimate the prominent
factors affecting the fair value, including but
not limited to, the expected life of the derivative
instruments and the expected volatility of the market
price.

Where the estimation on the abovementioned factors
is different from those previously estimated, such
differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of
the derivative financial instruments in the period in
which such determination is made.

Estimate of fair value of land and buildings
and investment properties

As described in notes 17 and 18, the Group’s
land and buildings and investment properties
were revalued at the end of the reporting period
on an open market value basis by an independent
professional valuer. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgment, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of interests in subsidiaries

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries
are impaired requires an estimation of the future
cash flows expected to arise from the subsidiaries in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
impairment loss on Company’s investments in the
subsidiaries of approximately HK$55,648,000 (2010:
nil) was recognised as the directors of the Company
are in the opinion that the share of assets of the
subsidiaries are less than their investment cost.
Details are set out in note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Company manage its capital to ensure
that entities in the Group and the Company will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s and the Company’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowing disclosed in note 28, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

4.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TRIITH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &M IENE
The Group
REE

2011 2010
i —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Financial assets SREE
Investments in equity securities fEARBAHIEE -

Loans and receivables (including B EWERR (B

cash and cash equivalents) B LIBEZEEY)) 266,505 278,788
266,505 278,788

Financial liabilities SREE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost ~ IREHSHA AT EZ B & 175,955 98,046
Derivative financial liabilities TESREE 5,908 6,452
181,863 104,498

The Company
KATF

2011 2010
—E——-F —T—ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T

Financial assets ERMEE
Investments in equity securities R AT AL E -

Loans and receivables (including BERNEWERR (B

cash and cash equivalents) RERREEED) 287,737
287,737

Financial liabilities SRIEE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost  IREk K AT E Y B & 96,700
Derivative financial liabilities PTESMAaE 6,452
103,152
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in equity securities, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from shareholders, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
derivative financial liabilities and bank borrowing.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowing (see note
28 for details of this borrowing) and cash flow interest
rate risk only to the extent on variable-rate bank
deposits.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points (2010: 10 basis
points) in interest rates for bank deposits, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s loss after taxation, and
retained profits by approximately HK$55,000 (2010:
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after taxation
and retained profits by approximately HK$130,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not
be affected by the changes in interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s losses for the
year (and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010. A 10 basis points (2010: 10 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases which give
rise to receivables, payables and bank balances and
borrowing that are denominated in a foreign currency
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to the risk are primarily United
States dollars (“USD”), RMB and KRW. The Group
and the Company ensure that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they

6. &MIR (&)

(b) MBEREEBRRBRK (&)

ShEE B (4E)
FrE 2 5% R

TRAIIAREE AR BRERE R
FrEs 2 B ER - BRERERERSR
AR 2IEEE BNz B BB
ZEBEENAREMEL - /HEZ
5 BBRSRRAETET  HFEZ

relate. For presentation purpose, the amounts of the BEEHFIABRE o
exposure are shown in HK$, translated using the spot
rate at the end of the reporting period.
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
&E afE BE BfE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FExT FBT FBT
uUSD =TT 175,817 24,354 182,246 25,367
RMB AR ¥ 37,116 10,700 7,236 10,226
KRW EEE 49,865 94,702 170,744 27,745
262,798 129,756 360,226 63,338
The Company
PN
2011 2010
—g——F —=-T4
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =R BE aE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHET FHET
usb 7T 182,246 25,367
RMB AR 2,690 7,244

184,936 32,611
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TRII R (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EABEBREEBEEZERBIR (&)
policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SMERBE (&)
Sensitivity analysis BURRE ST
The following table indicated the instantaneous Ti‘%zﬁﬁ:$$@&zﬁ/,\ REREHIR
change in the Group’s loss after taxation (and By BB AR 2 SN TE RO E A & 5
retained profits), the Company’s profit after taxation fjﬁ’i BB ER (&RE & s A
(and retained profits) that would arise if the foreign RARDNBIGEESMN (RIARZHH)
exchange rates to which the Group have significant ZEEE - B REBEMEGEET
exposure at the end of the reporting period had o ptms @ HEREREESE 2B T
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables BAZETIE RS R FETT N H i EEEE
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that BEB 7EMEFHMIINEAZE
the pegged rate between the HK$ and the USD would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the USD against other currencies.
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange loss after exchange profit after
rates taxation rates taxation
SMEEE  HEBIE  JMEER  HREE
EH/ (THR) EBE2SE 7/ (TR) &EizgE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FAET
usD e 1.0% 1,265 1.0% 1,310
(1.0)% (1,265) (1.0)% (1,310)
RMB AR 2.0% 441 2.0% (50)
(2.0)% (441) (2.0)% 50
KRW SEE 29.0% (10,857) 29.0% 34,627
(29.0)% 10,857 (29.0)% (34,627)
The Company
ARATF
2011 2010
—EB——F —T-TF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange loss after exchange profit after
rates taxation rates taxation
SMEEE  HEBBIE  JMEEE  HREE
EH/ (TH) BEZEE LA/ (TR) ®RilzyE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
UsD e 1.0% 1.0% 1,310
(1.0)% (1.0)% (1,310)
RMB AR - 2.0% (76)
= (2.0)% 76
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’ profit or loss
for the year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of
respective recognised financing assets as stated in
the consolidated statements of financial position.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The credit terms granted by the Group to its
customers generally range from 30 to 90 days. New
customers are normally required to trade on a cash
basis. Credit is offered to existing customers following
an established payment record. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates.

6.

€T R (8

(b)

MR EEEREREBR ()

ShEE B (4E)
BRREDH ()

ERMZINZ DM ERBERAKEE
BERAERINEEHTELIRRE
HAR 2 [E R W AR BB TThs 2 N F )
MRS 2 IR AR E -

BRREDITEBRRINEER 2 EH)E
RAREFTHEASE B LR RS
HRFEASBEHEGINER R 2 SHE
ENEE o WO T BB ERE
LB HRERBENAEE 2 25| 8
FIEEZZR - BN MRE_T—
TEMER 2 EEHETT ©

1= B JE B
#—"——¢+ A=t1— E $$
EM%J%TEZE?@EEH IZ*/\

Eﬁi‘“ﬂﬁﬁi’%qjﬁﬁtﬂlﬁaﬁﬁﬁw%mﬁé
EZEmEEMES - EREBABREE
BER - MxFEERRIVIRGEERE

AEBRTEFPZBRES  —RNF
30HEOH - IEF—MREURS
HRETRS » G RERER 215
K BRTRBTFEER - HEP
BRETHEXSBEFEE  Algy
MAEBREFEEREERE - &F
AHEERRE P A ERIHER 2 L8k
RBERER LN - XEBEIFFA
FRBZERMERFEEMERLHE
REAWIER -
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group do not obtain collateral from customers for
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as 13% (2010:
11%) and 37% (2010: 37%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, which
accounted for 48% (2010: 44%) of the total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2011.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors
of the Company considered the Company’s credit risk
is the same as the Group level as disclosed above.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
does not have material credit risk as most of its
receivables are inter-company balances.

6.

€T R (8

(b)

MR EEEREREBR ()

EEmbE (&)

BE-Z—— N _FT—ZFTF+ A
=t+t—HIFE AXEBRARTIL
V2 A1 P YEE R & o

AEEfEYE 2 EERR
HEFERFEZFE -
MITERBER Z ZHRB T EEE
BERE  BRYEREEREK - Fﬁ¢%
R AEEEETEFEER ﬁ
HEWKE SRS #ﬁ%w%(
TF 1 11%) R37% (ZF— fi
37%) DRIREAEB 2 HEARF R
AREE -

T BRI
BEEMAEE

Hﬂ]*

%

BTREREEERR  ~5£EEE
BEZR—#HAABAEHEEER
B EEEHREMEITER - MU
HEREREURETB R EI B EAEIR © It
Hh - AEBEESREPRENSIEA
ERB R EE 2 A REE5E © IR
AW B S RERTIR T R 2R BB B R
- BERI ARRAEERELE
B EERREBERE -

AEBIZMIFE S 2 EREERRE
EHARE R ——F+=A
= +t—HhE SRR ERE Z 48%
(Z2—2F : 44%) ~

m@éiZﬁb\ BAR - ESKER
DY F Y REBRREEFEEES
HEEFRREZ|RIT °

RBEE_ZT-TF+_A=1t—HL
FE - K AIESERS > ARAlZE
EREE PR AEE L EER

QKFHEE - REE-T——F1+=
A=1T—BILFE - ARF W
EREAEERR - TIEEXEDE
WERR A ERBAB R AR S A& o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s and the Company’s policies are to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. The management also monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
and the Company'’s liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis, and the undiscounted
gross (inflows) and outflows on those derivatives
that require gross settlement. When the amount
payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected interest
rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the
end of the reporting period.

6.

TR (&)

(b)

MHEREEBRRBK (B)

BE £ AR

REBRARRBZBRBEHERR
HESHFR - URFEEERWRE
ffé i e ] AR EL IS AR RIS R S0 0
BRE - ERME - P REBRESE
EHFEUANRBDESEEHZK - A&
BERERBECERE - VERER
FEfEh RITRERFEHBIEER
B RBEERBANERRSRE -
AREeREERTRAGE RIS
UHETTECYS ©

TRIBEWE < EFUEKFADHIR -
AERERARRITESRARERT
ZAHBHBR - ZRTIRAEE R
ARRIENRZZFERLATRE
BRZRMERERERESELERE -
AR THERAGRERE ° £
MERZFB KRB ZAEETD » R
BRI B ME AR Z MR ARG
& o

AN - PRFIAKERARRITE
BREEZITETERMBESHRDF
BORAR) Rt ERNEEGEE
ZOTETARBMBEE ORAE) &
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TRII R (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMABEKREEBEZERBUR (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HBEEERE (&)
The Group AEE
2011
—2—-F
After 1 year After 2 years Total
Within 1 year but within but within undiscounted
or on demand 2 years 5years  cash flows Carrying
—FR% —£% mER  AERREE amount
REX BRMER BRER mEMAG BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TET THT TET
Non-derivative financial FITESREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BN S REMER 101,992 101,992 101,992
Bank borrowing FITEEE 77,226 77,226 73,962

179,218 179,218 175,954

Derivative — gross settlement £i4 - #2E4&E
Derivative financial liabilites {144 @& & 5,908 5,908 5,908

2010
“E-%F
After 1 year  After 2 years Total
Within 1 year but within but within  undiscounted
or on demand 2 years Syears  cash flows Carrying
—ERH —F% WER  AERRE amount

BER  EREA EEFR RES RRE{E
HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$O00  HK$0O00  HK$O00
TAT TAT TATL TAT TAT

Non-derivative financial ETESRMER
liabilities
Trade and other payables [ERE 5 R E MR 84,202 - - 84,202 84,202
Bank borrowing RITEE 14,149 - - 14,149 13,844
98,351 - - 98,351 98,046
Derivative — gross settlement  $j4 - B E
Derivative financial liabilites ~ {144 & & & = 6,452 = 6,452 6,452
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. ©RIA (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEKREEEFERBR (8)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEIEZ R (&)
The Company KA E]
At 31 December 2011, all the Company’s financial RZTE—F+-_A=+—"H ' &Q
liabilities are required to be settled with one year RIZFTEEMAEAR —FANKRE
or repayable on demand. The total contractual SKIEE - ZELRBEZEAARINR
undiscounted cash flow of these financial liabilities R4 nEAEBENEERESRL
equals their carrying amounts on the statement of R ZREE -
financial position.
2010
—T-FF
Carrying
amount and
After 1 year After 2 years total
Within 1 year but within but within undiscounted
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow
—FRg —F& MEE KRR E
REK EmERA BREFR MEBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL THIL TAT THL
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERE 5 REMER 82,942 = = 82,942
Bank borrowing RITEE 13,998 = = 13,758
96,940 - - 96,700
Derivative - gross settlement 74 - AXELE
Derivative financial liabilities MTESBAERE - 6,452 - 6,452

In order to manage the above liquidity demands, at
31 December 2011, approximately HK$110,182,000
(2010: HK$133,505,000) of the Group’s assets are

held in cash respectively.

REBELARBHESHF R R-F
——H+ZA=+—H8  A&EHY
110,182,000 7L ( = T — T F :
133,505,000/ 7T) 2 BED Bl AR
EHAFA -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis; and

o the fair value of derivative instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis using the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair
values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate to their corresponding carrying amounts
due to short-term or immediate maturity.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

6. ©RIA (&)

(b)

MHEREEBRRBK (B)

RAIEE

TREENREBABEZAAEEEE
ZZDT -

s HieBMEENETBMAE (F
BRTETER) 2RAEET
RUBRASRENN K

ATH ZL\\/LI:{ {EL/(#&{/\Q
B BEREERAHEER
FIERETETAEMES -
BESARGRBERAZE
BARETITER %xﬁi%’]ﬁﬂﬁ
At ML OTETAmS -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the assets or liability that are based

6.

€T R (8

(b)

MHEREEBRRBK (B)

wAfEE (B)

s FEBAAEEEDNREMR
REEXBEEEEN S Z R
B CREHE) SHEMRE -

s FEAABEEMENRIER
F—EERBEAINNE
EXREMEBABRE 2B A
Rt B (AMERER) kE
& (AREER) 5 EME -

s F-EAABEAENERM
BT M A 8 A IEE R A]
BERMBHEBCEN GFER

on observable market data (unobservable wWAEE) P71 o
inputs).
2011 2010
—ZT——F —E-FF
Level 2 Level 2
EE F[E
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FETT
Derivative financial liabilities PTESMmAas 5,908 6,452
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 MEEEANMRE —BHEHE BRI

in both years.

Included in consolidated income statement is an
amount of approximately HK$544,000 (2010:
HK$939,000) fair value gain related to the derivative
financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period.

LR

FEAGREERR A NSRS AR
BziiEeRmA B s AR EBERELD
544,000/ 7T (ZF—2FF : 939,000
FBIT) °
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electronic components. The Group’s operations
are divided into two reportable segments: composite
components segment and unit electronic components
segment.

Segment turnover and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and
results by reportable segments:

——

7. HBREN

AEEFERERERHEEE LM - $
SEzEBEYAMERNE®RSE  EE
HDHERBEMBEFITHEDED

DERERBRER
NTAAEE 2 EXBARFERITE2RD
BBETYEZ AT -

BXE

Turnover

Segment (loss) profit eIl (33,364)
Unallocated operating REHE &S

income WA

—Increase in fair value of - BEBMEZ RS
investment properties E{EEm
- Others - Htp
Finance costs BERAK
(Loss) profit before BRBiAT (51R)
taxation eyl

Composite
components
Chis
2011 2010
“B-—-f C—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET

296,271 391,814

Unit electronic

components Consolidated
ENEF ks &a
2011 2010 2011 2010
“B--f —T-TF ZB--§ C"T-TH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET TR FET

261,280 288,667 557,551 680,481

(29,406) (62,770)

(57,389)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss from) profit
earned by each segment without allocation of part of other
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

WO M2 BETBREREEZ 5K
ﬁ (ZZDMT*BFE ) A - 58 (BR) &
MR D EMS (B1R) Prfoas] - E5ir
BEOREY 2 EMBRARBEKA < b5
Wiﬁzai;}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%tMﬂbEéﬁﬁﬂﬁi&
REFEZETE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEHER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities NEHEEREGRE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UTNAERER ZEELEA FIFR 23D 20
liabilities by reportable segments: FT{EZ DA -
Composite Unit electronic
components components Consolidated
s ENEFaH )
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

—B--f -—T-%TF —B--§ —T-TF _B--§ _—T-%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TRT TR TRT TiET TRT

Segment assets NEEE 178,556 178,618 188,974 145,047 367,530 323,665
Unallocated assets AEOFEE
— Bank balances and cash - $R{74&4RES 110,182 133,505

— Others - Hfh 75,309 72,732

Consolidated assets BEREE 553,021 529,902
Segment liabilities HEark 96,161

Unallocated liabilities REATEE

— Bank borrowing - RITEE 73,962

- Others - Hit 55,649

Consolidated liabilities 488 E 225,772 155,918

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and BERBRASHRBERESDEZE D EE

allocating resources between segments: IR

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments other o FBEENERAEHRHE BREN
than cash and cash equivalents, intangible assets, REFEY  BREE BE - 9
goodwill, part of other receivables, amounts due from HihEUBRTIR - FEU IR AN EE
shareholders, deposits for purchase of property, plant s MWERRE IR RIREE
and equipment and investment property. Assets used RO o R 23R/ PHEA 2 B ETIRE
jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the BE D &

basis of the production capacity; and

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments s MEABENEREEAIZE{/HI  BoE
other than part of other payables, derivative financial HEMERR  fTESRABE - BITHE
liabilities, bank borrowing and current and deferred AR ANEA R IEERLIE B &R AN o

tax liabilities.



Annual Report 2011

T ——FFRH 11 9/0/
/

Notes to the Financial Statements
2y s

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

——

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SDERER (&)
Other segment information Hin oy EpE R
Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss AT AEtE D 20 F sk Eia sk o 2B & E T
or segment assets: FTAZ R
Composite Unit electronic
components components Unallocated Consolidated
ant EEFnH i) &8
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--§ -3-%% -§--F “T-%3F “%--§ -3-%F "§--F %%
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
T TEr TExr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TER  TEn
Additions o non-current assets REEEHEE 39,492 28,384 66,944
Depreciation and amortisation RER&E 8,316 5422 17,870
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  KERRE
and equipment ¢ (3,087) - (1,707)
Impairment loss recognised ontrade [N E B REMES
and other receivables LHEFR 18 654 2772
Reversal of impairmentloss recognised ~ EIEGEWNE 5 REME
on trade and other receivables BALAERE 42) (160)
Alowance for (reversal of allowance ~ TZ¢4% (BEEE)
for) inventories 2013 179
Decrease in fair value of derivative TESRBEZ AL BERY
financial iabiliies - (939)

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible assets and
deposits for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

et  ERBBEETERENE  BVEERBEY
¥ BEMRBZES -
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Geographical information

The Group’s operation is principally located in Hong Kong,
Korea and other parts of the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

SERE R ()

R
ARE2 BBESERES - RERFE
E A -

AEBRBEINGES 2 Wa kB BEIER
BEEEHREEMIBMBEFIINAT

Turnover
—E L
2011

—¥——-F —FT-FTF =R——F —FTTF

HK$’000

FET

PRC (other than Hong Kong) # B (&M 267,218
Hong Kong &5 113,480
Korea 457 110,017
Others Hip 66,836

557,551 680,481 220,113 163,708

Non-current assets

FRBEE
2010 2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FERT THETT
330,562 57,065 76,775
152,039 8,194 7,566
141,510 154,854 79,367
56,370 - =

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s
customer base included one customer (2011: Nil) with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
turnover. Turnover from this customer amounted to
approximately HK$72 million from composite components
and unit electronic components.

FRETEERZER

2T —TFE+_HA=+—HIFE "
AEEZRFHREE—R2EF (Z2——
F:\) BEARHGBEBAEEEXTE L
10% - REZBRFBBES THREME
Froihz & ¥R A 72,000,000 7T °
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8. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers less goods returned and trade discounts.

——

BEBIHETEPZEMZIHERE -
HREERESITN -

9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS H g \ R U 3=
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZFBWA 637
Interest income from proceeds receivables HE RGN B & PR FR I8 A
from disposal of equity securities 2 F B 81
Rental income (Net of HeBA (MR
outgoings of HK$46,000 46,0008 (ZE—FF :
(2010: HK$42,000)) 42,000%7T)) 312
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - M REE
plant and equipment ZWEs 1,707
Scrap sales RERLSHE 169
Value added tax refund (note) BEFRRB (M) 2,748
Decrease in fair value of derivative TESEEE
financial liabilities ZARBERD 939
Increase in fair value of REYZE 2 A EEEN
investment properties 1,000
Others HAfb 959
8,552

Note: A tax concession was granted by the PRC tax authority to one
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries which is engaged in the
export sales of electronic products. Under this concession, the
PRC subsidiary is entitled to a refund of value added tax paid
in excess of the rate stipulated in tax concession. The amount
of value added tax refund is recognised as other income on an
accrual basis.

BieE : REBRBHEARAR R EEFERLAH
EXB 2 FENEABELTRIERR © RIZ
L TER %2 AR BB A B AT ph B IR E R
BB R PTAIER R 2 B0 ISR © 15
ENRY @ FIR R AR R EMUA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. RAE A
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Interest charges on: FBEXZH :
Bank loans wholly repayable within 1 year N—EREEZBITER 1,228 389
Less: amounts capitalised B OEENMEeEE (1,228) -
389
11. TAXATION 11. HIE
2011 2010
—ZE——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBREB
Provision for the year NEFRAE = 3,674
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBRERE (9,652) -
(9,652) 3,674
PRC Corporate Income Tax PELEREH
Provision for the year ARF SR 1,009 1,708
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 172 58
1,181 1,766
Korean Corporate Income Tax BEGCEMEH
Under-provision in prior years BEFEBRETR 655 =
(7,816) 5,440
Deferred tax (note 32) EEBE (M15E32)
Charged for the year AEFEE T H 505 885
(7,311) 6,325
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For the year

ended 31 December 2011 HE—ZT——F+_A=1+—HIFE

11. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, no Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been provided in the financial statements as the Group
has no assessable profits for the year. For the year ended 31
December 2010, Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for that year.

Provisions for the PRC Corporate Income Tax for Shenzhen
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”)
and Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
are calculated at 24% (2010: 22%) and 25% (2010: 25%) of
estimated assessable profits for the year respectively.

The applicable PRC Corporate Income Tax rate for the Group’s
new subsidiary, Baoying Kwang Sung Electronics Co. Ltd.
(“Baoying Kwang Sung”) is 25%. Baoying Kwang Sung is
granted certain tax relief under which is exempted from PRC
Corporate Income Tax for the first five profit making years and
entitled to an income tax reduction to 12.5% for the next five
years. No provision of PRC Corporate Income tax has been
made as Baoying Kwang Sung did not have any assessable
profits subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

The Korea Branch and a subsidiary operated in Korea
are subject to Korean Corporate Income Tax. The basic
Korean Corporate Tax rates for the year are 11% on the first
KRW200,000,000 of the tax base and 22% for the excess. In
addition to the basic tax rate, there is a resident surcharge of
10% on the income tax liability. No provision for taxation has
been made as there is no assessable profit for the year ended
31 December 2011. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Korean Corporate Income Tax was calculated at 10% of the
estimated assessable profits for that year.

The Group carries out manufacturing activities in the PRC
through its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kwang Sung and under the
terms of a processing agreement with a third party factory, and
has substantial involvement in these manufacturing activities
undertaken in the PRC. The profits earned are thus considered
to be partly arising and derived from the manufacturing
activities carried out in the PRC and partly from other activities
performed in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group claimed a
50:50 offshore concession in respect of Hong Kong Profits
Tax which had been agreed with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) in the year of assessment
1999/2000.

In 2008, the HKIRD enquired the Group the basis of its 50:50
offshore claims for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2006/07
in relation to the Group’s manufacturing activities carried out in
the PRC, and issued an additional assessment of approximately
HK$3,318,000 for the year of assessment 2001/02 on the basis
that the Group was not eligible to the 50:50 offshore claims
for profits derived from manufacturing activities carried out by
Shenzhen Kwang Sung. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$3,318,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in 2008.

——

11. BIR (&)

(b)

ARAEEHZE—_T—F+_A=1—H
LIFEF W EERTOGE A - RN B IRER
AHRRER NG c HE_T—TFEF—
A=1T—BLFE  BBNEHHRZFE
ZIEETIERBOEM 2 16.5% 71 & -

FINHEBTFAERRAT (DFRINKE]) Bt
EETES (RY) BRARZHEPER
SR BB AR EE Gt ERFOE M D Bk
24% (ZE—T4F : 22%) [k 25% (ZE—F
4 25%) 5tE o

AEBHMBLARSEERAEETARA
Al ((EECE]) BRPECEMEHRA
25% - BRENEBF THBRER » BULERN
BREERNFERUPBECEREH Rk
BRAFZAMERETRE 12.5% - HNEE
RERBE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HILF
B & (—F—2F &) FAEHTED
EmETat - BERZE ARz hEE
FEMSHIEL R -

BED N AR —EERELE 7 B QR E
IABNTERI DRI o EATRBI MR
AHIE R H 200,000,000 % B A 10% + il
Z A B 22% o BREATIEIN - TRELETIF
HEEHK1L% ERHME - REBEE—F
—F T+ - A=+ —BIFFEAGEERN
EA - WMAFEI B TIREE - REE
“E-TEF"A=+—HIFE  EEb
FEFSTHIRZFE 2 (A5t AT 10%
FIAGHE o

REEEBEMBRRIRYIEE A RARIRE
£=77 TR 2 — BRI T2 (FRET
BIEITELEES) - WA AN BETZ
ZEELERE) o HULPTIRER 25 A 3B 1R
BRI BT 2 USRS PIE L REVS
M ER D AR B U BB ETT 2 RS FTEL
REUS - it AKREBREENSHE L
50:50 Z BFF R RER - MAEBHIBEER
—NANN/ —EETARFEREZHREE

R-ZT)N\E . BERBRAAEEEHE
RAASEETBEMETREES MM —TF
—/EE-TTR/BLABFERY
50:50 B R BR 2 K1 - WERAEH
TNEBERBRIIN 2T 2 BLEEEDPTERER
A Z A 5050 ZBEFERR - ML —FF—

T~ GF B 2 B FR SN AT B 49 3,318,000
BT e RRARR Z T \FHZRRINT DR
MRS WNEERERERBE A
3,318,000 %t ©
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In March 2009, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2002/03
amounted to approximately HK$6,423,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$6,423,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in 2009.

In March 2010, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2003/04
amounted to approximately HK$9,334,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$9,334,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2010.

In March 2011, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2004/05
amounted to approximately HK$4,305,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$4,305,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Group’s operation has remained unchanged since
1999/2000, in view of the stringent approach adopted by the
HKIRD in treating 50:50 manufacturing offshore profits claim,
the Group had made provision for the previously 50:50 offshore
claims of approximately HK$35,996,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2009. In February 2012, HKIRD and the
Company have reached a compromise settlement in relation
to the Company'’s taxation affairs for the years of assessment
2001/02 to 2007/08 (the “Period”). Based on revised notices
of assessment and letters received from HKIRD, net Profits
Tax payable for the Period has been revised to approximately
HK$24,239,000. As the Company has made provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax of approximately HK$33,891,000
for the Period, the excessive tax provision of approximately
HK$9,652,000 made in prior years has been reversed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June 2003, two
shareholders, Mr. Yang Jai Sung and Kwang Sung Electronics
Co., Ltd. (“Kwang Sung Korea) would indemnify the Group
for any tax liabilities for period prior to 30 June 2003. Out
of the above tax liabilities of approximately HK$24,239,000,
a sum of tax expenses of approximately HK$8,478,000
(2010: HK$9,946,000) should be therefore borne by the
two shareholders, details are set out in note 39(a)(ii). During
the year, an amount of HK$1,468,000 was charged to the
contribution reserve in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

T—BIFE

11. BIR (&)

B -

(b)

(&)
(%)

R-ZZENE=F  FEERKRELS—H
%Ei@l\pHRL%Di BT /T=GIHF
JZ 3 KA 3 Lt 50:50 B 77 B R 2 B SN AT AR
#)6,423,000 87T - ARBR =TT NFH
BN IR R WINE BN R
B #Hi 546,423,000 7T °

N-Z-ZE=R FEBRHERELE—H
BOITBAE S —TT= / TUFHF
JE 8 KA B it 50:50 B = B 3R 2 FEINAT Y
#)9,334,0008 T - ARRIRNBE_T—F
F+-A=+—HIEFEHBEIFTIRLY
R WIMEERBRERBEERFRH S
9,334,000 °

R-_T——F=F BFERBRELS 0D
BHNIBBAE - =TT/ TRABF
JZ 3 K B B Lt 50:50 B /r B 3R 2 RESNRTAR
#94,305,000/87C - ARARBE_Z—F
Frt-A=+—BILFEHBIIFHIRLY
R4 - AMBFERBREKRBERR S
4,305,000 7T ©

REBE—NANN/ ZZETTFURZEIE
WRTE - BEREBMEBEERED0:50
BUE X TS B R A B 2 BB R FEREVERAR
% MUANEE B BT 2 50:50 B R ERR
BE_ZTZZhF+_A=1+—HItFEF
i #935,996,000 7% 7T B 45 - ﬁ@:%*:i
:H C BABRBERRAARR =TT/
T_FREREE_ZTT /TN Hﬂiﬁ
([ZEAME ) R — BT RFFE T R - BRI
RUER] 2 BB A R IR B BB B2 5
- BZEREEN 2 AETFEREITELN
24,239,00047T © BRAA TEV&%%%
B8 15 71 15 5 49 33,891,000 7T + 1K
iﬁfiirﬁﬂ’ﬁZt%’EﬁIE}%{%m9,652,000
Eﬁiﬁzw?é%@%a

*E?FEIHHJ%_7 S—FXRNA-T=ZHZRE

B MBREREE KA RKN ST
%E%% ([BREXE]) MR _TET=FN
B =1+ Bai#H 2 E RS &R AL EE
R o B £ 3t 49 24,239,000 T
ZHHIBAES  44%8498,478,000/8 7T (=
T — T4 9,946,000 7T) 2 K 1A B L e
ERADE S S =29, N 6))
(i) ° £ - £% 1,468,000/ TO AR AHE
wmEBRAHE BN
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the years can be reconciled to the

11. FHIE (&)

——

EFEERBARGAEBRERTRRTA (&

(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated income B) mF 2 EHRAT
statement as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
(Loss) profit before taxation AR (E518) A (57,389) 14,018
Notional tax on (loss) profit before taxation, 1% BB R RAT 1S al AR (&
calculated at the rates applicable to profit EESENZ ERMKRTE
in the tax jurisdictions concerned EiET (BR) &H
ZAERIA (7,614) 2,629
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PATER S = T A 0k
for tax purpose A2 RIS E 4,477 2,767
Tax effect of non-taxable income FIRIBR G M = BERD
for tax purpose WA Z B s 2 (141) (828)
Tax effect of unused tax loss and FUELERIIE BRI S m AR
other temporary differences not R Z ABAHEEE X
recognised for deferred tax purposes HibFahs =%8 2 S £ 4,792 1,699
(Over) under-provision in prior years BEFEE (FBRERE) BETE (8,825) 58
Taxation for the year INEEFIIR (7,311) 6,325

Note: According to Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance S.16(1)
g, the sum expensed for the registration of patents used in
the trade, profession or business which produces profits are
allowed to be deducted from the Hong Kong Profits Tax.

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 32.

BIRE - R BB R IRDISE 16(1gfk - FEMEE
5~ BEAEBREN 2 F| 2 BFIERT 8
Z e BAEEB ISR -

AEERIR 2 B RN KT RE 32
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12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. XEE (&8) &
2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Loss) profit for the year is arrived at AEE (FE) amfl

after charging (crediting): kR (TA) -

Auditors’ remuneration 1% A B 475
Minimum lease payments LEHET 2 &IEBERK

under operating leases

— hire of properties - A 4,093
Staff costs (including directors’ ETKA (BHEEEMHE)

remunerations disclosed in (B sE 13 EE)

note 13)

— salaries, wage, allowance and - e IE - 2Eh

other benefits in kind MEAME DR 84,352 83,965

— retirement scheme contributions — IRIRETE) 2 3K 5,262 1,871

89,614 85,836
Cost of inventories recognised BRARAST ZFERAR

as an expense 460,591 587,618
Written down of club membership SET MR = 73
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEBH 1,168 1,145
Impairment loss recognised on FEUE G BRFIER

trade receivables (included in ZREEE (FrAHAL

other operating expenses) LR 2,772
Reversal of impairment loss [B1 5 sk FE U & 5 I ELAth AR 3K

recognised on trade and RMEERE

other receivables (included GtATTEAX)

in administrative expenses) (160)
Impairment loss recognised on T ERER 2 REEE

goodwill (included in other (FFAE LR )

operating expenses) -
Net foreign exchange losses (gains) PE 5 E51E (Ukss) JFRE (247)
Allowance for inventories FERE GTAESEKA)

(included in cost of sales) 2,013
Reversal of allowance for inventories FER o (1,834)
Depreciation e 16,791
Less: amount recorded under B BB T ERS 2 £ %8

government grant (66)
Amount charged to the consolidated R EERRPXH IS

income statement 16,725
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12.

13.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$54,775,000
(2010: HK$55,640,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and minimum lease payments in respect of rented
premises, of which amounts are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Minimum lease payments include an amount of
approximately HK$642,000 (2010: HK$675,000) for staff
quarters which is also included and disclosed in staff costs.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

12.

13.

——

FEE (BR) @ (&

FERABERBEIRA TEREE
W &K E 502 #)54,775,00078 7T
(ZZ—F4F : 55,640,00087T) * Ek®
BEMEBFALRDAREZZSRRATHE
7 o

REHENREREEEIBEE 24

642,000/ 7t ( =& — Z £ : 675,000/8
TT)  ZERENEEMEEAE TRAR -

EEME

BEEEDTEAE I6LIEIEE BBV E
EewT -

Directors’
fees
EEHd
HK$'000
TR
Executive directors HTEE
Yang Jai Sung PR
Lee Kyu Young FERL
Non-executive director FBTES
Yang Ho Sung Pt
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Kim Chung Kweon I
Han Byung Joon BRE

Kim Chan Su SEK

Salaries,

allowances
and benefits Retirement Total
in kind scheme &gt
& 28 contributions 2011
RENEFN  BAGEMER —E2—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THT
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13. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 13. EEME (&)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement Total
Directors’ in kind scheme A&t
fees E =il contributions 2010
EEdn REWEMN  EBREEIR —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Yang Jai Sung PR - 2,580 12 2,592
Woo Nam Jin (note 1) &mY (1) = = = =
Lee Kyu Young i - 762 13 775
Non-executive director FHTES
Yang Ho Sung PR 27 401 - 428
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Kim Chung Kweon S IFRE 82 13 = 9
Han Byung Joon BRE 84 = = 84
Kim Chan Su SEAK 84 17 = 101
277 3,773 25 4075
Note: Mzt -

1) Resigned on 29 January 2010.

No directors waived any emoluments in the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010. No emoluments were paid
to the directors as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

1) RZZE—TF—A=T+hBEfF-

Hz_Z2——Fk-_ZE—ZTF+_A
=+—HLIEFE  BMEEERETA
& HEZE——FR_FT-ZF+_A
= t+—HIFE BMERESZAHS -
AR EREMAS R IMALREBRFRIEA
BB, 2 7818 o
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14.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2010: one) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 13. The emoluments
of the remaining three (2010: four) individuals, which are
individually below HK$1,000,000, were as follows:

14.

——

hassHAL

hEZRHALTY  EfmE (Z2—F
F:—F) AARAES  EME&ERN E
MHFISELHE - At =% (ZT—F
F : 04) e AT ZBil€7E 1,000,000
BITAT - & -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement scheme contributions

e AR REDER
RIRETBIFR

2011 2010
—g——F  —2-%F
HK$'000 HK$/000
Fi#T Titz
3,581

48

3,629

15.

16.

No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2011, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2010: Nil).

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss) earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$49,714,000
(2010: profit for the year of approximately
HK$8,087,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 323,897,000 (2010: 323,897,000)
in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss) earnings per share

Diluted (loss) earnings per share are the same as
basic (loss) earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 because the Company
had no outstanding dilutive potential shares during
the both years.

15.

16.

HE_Z2—FR-_ZE—ZFF+=A
=+—HIFE #ERAEZaEHMA
TS - AAEREMAKR AR
S ERSk 1E AR 2 ffE -

iz 2

R-T——FWERBENEZIRERS
B ¥R & B R DA SR 3 2 3 R B TR
(Z2—FF |-

B (B1R) BF

(@ SBREX (BRE) BT

BRER (F18) B EIR AR A%
B AL AR FE EE 449,714,000
BLT(ZE—ZF: FERMNH
8,087,000 7T) R FRNE BEITL R
A% 2 AN#E S 5 88 323,897,000 B% ( —
T—T 4 : 323,897,000%) 5& o

(b) BREHE (HiR) BF

BE—_ZT—FR-_FT—ZFTF+_A
=+t HULEFEZEREE (BB)
BFEFGRER (FE) 87 —%
REARARRINZMFEAL ELEE
M2 BERD
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W% - BRRR

The Group AEE
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plantand  equipment Construction-
BEBHR machinery  Ef4)%¥ - in-progress Total
ZIwREF HERRE HERZE ERIR Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THL
COST OR VALUATION ARG & E
At 1 January 2010 RZZT—ZTF—F—H 34,643 127,440 37,949 - 200,032
Exchange adjustments P o 7R 3,822 2,965 1,080 62 7,929
Additions IR 49,863 4204 10,744 2,133 66,944
Disposals HeE (462) (13,210) (1,632) - (15,304)
Surplus on revaluation HHBH 6,470 - - - 6,470
Eliminated on revaluation BIEEEH (1,093) - = = (1,093)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZTF
+-A=+—H 93,243 121,399 48141 2,195 264,978
REPRESENTING &
Cost XA - 121,399 48,141 2,195 171,735
Valuation - 2010 HE-—E—ZF 93,243 - - - 93,243
93,243 121,399 48,141 2,195 264,978
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—A—H - 96,391 32,340 - 128,731
Exchange adjustments fE 5 A% 12 492 304 - 808
Provided for the year FERE 1,091 11,763 3,937 - 16,791
Eliminated on disposals HE R (10) (12,997) (1,616) = (14,623)
Eliminated on revaluation S (1,093) = = = (1,093)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF
+-A=+—H - 95,649 34,965 - 130,614
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 NZE—FTF
+=—RA=1+—H 93,243 25,750 13,176 2,195 134,364
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. W% - W RHE (B)

The Group (Continued) AEH (8)
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plantand  equipment Construction-
BEBHR machinery  Ef4)%¥ - in-progress Total
ZIwREF HERRE HERZE EEIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT THT THL
COST OR VALUATION A A E
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—F—H 93,243 121,399 48141 2,195 264,978
Exchange adjustments BE A% (914) 4,743 1,958 (2,830) 2,957
Additions R - 5,232 4,602 64,485 74,319
Disposals HE - (6,732) (361) - (7,003)
Reclassification to investment BN ERRENE
properties (note 18) (i3 18) (21,755) - - - (21,755)
Surplus on revaluation BhAR 1,779 - = = 1,779
Eliminated on revaluation s p (631) - — = (631)
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——14F
+-A=1t—H 71,722 124,642 54,340 63,850 314,554
REPRESENTING &
Cost B = 124,642 54,340 63,850 242 832
Valuation - 2011 fHE-—F—% 71,722 — ~ - 71,722
71,722 124,642 54,340 63,850 314,554
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2011 R-E——F—H—H - 95,649 34,965 - 130,614
Exchange adjustments R (15) 3,797 1,180 - 4,962
Provided for the year FERAE 646 8,959 3,847 - 13,452
Eliminated on revaluation HERS H Y (631) - - - (631)
Eliminated on disposals BhREHE - (6,732) (361) - (7,093)
At 31 December 2011 NZE——F
+-A=t+-8 - 101,673 39,631 - 141,304
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2011 NZE——4F
+-B=1+—H 71,722 22,969 14,709 63,850 173,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZ—Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. ¥ - W/ RHRE (B

The Company AL F
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plant and equipment
#H#EBA  machinery Hibys - Total
2T REF HBEREE HERLE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT T4 AT THT
COST OR VALUATION A EE
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—ZTF—H—H 20,443 19,378 14,857 54,678
Exchange adjustments PE H L 666 2,946 956 4,568
Additions b7 - 6,296 2,180 8,476
Disposals HeE (462) - (224) (686)
Surplus on revaluation BhER% 2,058 - - 2,058
Eliminated on revaluation E(HERFE (601) = - (601)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF
+=—RA=+— 22,104 28,620 17,769 68,493
REPRESENTING R*T
Cost DN - 28,620 17,769 46,389
Valuation— 2010 HE - —F—FF 22,104 - - 22,104
22,104 28,620 17,769 68,493
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2010 —T—ZTF—HF—H - 12,563 11,484 24,047
Exchange adjustments PE i, A% 12 484 206 702
Charge for the year NEE L 5H 599 8,463 2,143 11,205
Written back on disposals — H & B 54 (10) = (224) (234)
Eliminated on revaluation — E{hR5%44 (601) = = (601)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—FTF
+—A=+—H - 21,510 13,609 35,119
CARRYING VAULES AREE
At 31 December 2010 N-E—FF
+=—A=+—H 22,104 7,110 4,160 33,374
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZ—Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

17. 9% - #BRHRE (B
=7 (&)

Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plant and equipment
BEBA  machinery  EHitty¥ - Total
ZTREF HEkEE HBERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT AT THAT AT
COST OR VALUATION AR (EE
At 1 January 2011 R-E——F—H—H 22,104 28,620 17,769 68,493
Exchange adjustments PE 5, 8 (446) 548 181 283
Additions R - 60 698 758
Disposals e - - (11) (11)
Deficit on revaluation Eﬁ)ﬁ?%ﬁ (440) = - (440)
Transfer to subsidiaries upon %W%ﬁi%ﬂﬁ%i@;%@;‘é
intra-group restructuring WEBA (20,883) (29,228) (18,637) (68,748)
Less: Eliminated on revaluation J : EHH E g (335) = = (335)
At 31 December 2011 RN-E——14F
+T=ZA=1+— - - = =
REPRESENTING 3k
Cost B AN - — _ _
Valuation— 2011 HE-—Z—%F - = = -
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2011 RN-_ZE——%—HF—H - 21,510 13,609 35,119
Exchange adjustments FE H, B (15) 421 167 573
Charge for the year NEZ > 3 350 2,782 1,540 4,672
Written back on disposals & B4 - - (5) (5)
Transfer to subsidiaries upon £ & Wﬁﬁéiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéi
intra-group restructuring B A - (24,713) (15,311) (40,024)
Eliminated on revaluation iﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ (335) - = (335)
At 31 December 2011 N-E——F
+=—A=+— - - = =
CARRYING VAULES EETE]
At 31 December 2011 R ——%F
+=—A=+—~H - - - -
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Ltz - WS NREETRNERAFEAR

depreciated on straight-line basis over the following useful

lives:

o Freehold land is not depreciated

BARORITE

o  THKAFERHLMETIE -

Leasehold land and buildings situated thereon are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more

than 50 years after the date of purchase
Plant and machinery 4 — 10 years

Other property, plant and equipment 3 -5 years

o HELWREFTRRERBEOFHR
HitstEAFERzREE (AT
HiEb04F) EITHE °

o HIERRM
o  Hib¥X  HMIBENR

4-10%

= 354
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The Company (Continued)
Notes:

(a)  The analysis of net carrying value of land and buildings held for

own use carried at fair value is as follows:

17. ¥ - WERR
KA

i)
(a)

(%)

(%)

w

FAEEBRNAAEBEIIRZ THRETZ
IREDFEDAT

The Group
rEH
2011
-5 ——
Freehold outside TER BRI
Hong Kong KA ERERSH
Medium-term leases TERABHEI
outside Hong Kong LR EEAEE

The Company
N
2011

2010
T -TF
HK$'000
FHTT

2010

T —TF
HK$'000
FHTT

(b)  The Group’s and the Company’s land and buildings held
for own use was revalued as at 31 December 2011 at their
open market value. The valuations were carried out by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers Appraisal”), an
independent firm of professional surveyors not connected
with the Group who had among staff members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.
A revaluation surplus of the Group of approximately
HK$1,779,000 (2010: HK$6,470,000) and a revaluation
deficit of the Company of approximately HK$440,000 (2010:
revaluation surplus of approximately HK$2,058,000) have
been transferred to the properties revaluation reserve, net of
the Group’s and the Company’s deferred tax of approximately
HK$884,000 (2010:HK$2,609,000) and HK$99,000 and
(2010:HK$577,000) respectively (note 32).

Had the above land and buildings held for own use been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been:

W=F——%+-A=+—H - BHRAKE
RAATRAEERZ HREF 2 AHD
(B 1T 0 » 5% o LA 0 30 4%
B2 By ERAEMEE N AE S EBEA
BAR (URHAE] 1T - Kt
BT AESHUBNERNE - (GESE
IR % R R 32 T R
TifT - AR SRR 1779000587
(ZZ—Z% : 6,470,000 7T) MEHEAL
444000087 (—F— B4 AR AES
R#412,058000/8 ) 1K AKE A
A2 EEBIAKEEA000 T (“F—F :
2,609,000 7T) 599,000 T (—E—=F
% 877000 70) D RERENEE K
8 (RHiE32) -

fil DS E B B 2 T REFERKARER
FHTEIIE - BRESEAS

The Group
TEE
2011
—E——fF
HK$'000
FET
Freehold land and KA ERER R
buildings 2 T RiEF
Leasehold land and HEEREA
buildings 2 T RiEF

AAH
2010 2011 2010
—TTF —E——F —ZTTF

The Company

HK$'000
THIT

HK$’000
FExT

HK$'000
THL

(c) During the year, the Group capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to HK$1,228,000 (2010: Nil) in the construction-in-
progress. Borrowing costs were capitalised at specific borrowing
which bears interest ranging from 4.00% to 6.98% per annum

(2010: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period 31 December 2011, the
Group’s land and buildings held for own use of HK$71,722,000
(2010: 21,603,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 28).

(d)

(e) During the year, the Company transfers its assets and
liabilities at their carrying value to its subsidiaries upon group

restructuring on the date of transfer.

(c)

(d)

(e)

FRN AEEEREEIRZEERAK
1,228,000/ 7L (=T —FF &) - fEEK
ARTRE BN T4 4.00% £ 6.98% 2 4%
AEEETER (ZT—ZF E)-

RgEk—T——F+-A=+—8
K& E71,7220008 0 (—ZF — F F:
21,603,000 70) FEG A2+ REFE
agﬁﬁﬁﬁ%$%52ﬁﬁ@§$2%ﬁ
13528) ©

FA - NEEAETEEAPERR - A
’Ajﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%%&ﬁ’éé&ﬁ%éﬁ%%
NS
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. HEWX

The Group The Company
by . | PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-F —T-TF —E——F —T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBx FET THx BT
Fair value “REE
At 1 January R—A—H 4,100
Transfer from property, ~ EE AV - #e
plant and equipment Rk (FFE17)
(note 17) -
Transfer to subsidiaries 2@ 2P E 4 A% HE
upon intra-group ZHBAR
restructuring (6,000) -
Exchange adjustments [ 3 % -
Increase in fair value RiEREH R
recognised in Z AR EEE
profit or loss 2,586 1,000
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 29,930 5,100

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
properties at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010
has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that dates by Vigers Appraisal, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. Vigers
Appraisal is a member of the Institute of Valuers, and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
lease to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

AEBRANGBZIEEYMHER T ——
F+-_A=+—BE-_ZE—ZFF+_A4
= t+t—BZARBEIZEREEIL &
B BUABERBEMEMEIEHTEET
HRZEABMETZFEMSL - BE
HEENHAGHEMPECEE8 - AEE
BRI EREA S REMEREZE
5o FIfE 2 (HENZER —ERIFR
EEME KRS EIEMIHRE ©

REBZ B R EEOFE LA EHRIR
MEREATHEZMERED  HEAA
EBEEAE  A0BRAMAREMEA

accounted for as investment property. iR o
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group REBE-_E——F+_A=1+—HIF

changed the use of one of the owner-occupied properties
for its administrative function and leased them out
on operating income at its fair value of approximately
HK$21,755,000 on the date of transfer.

THHRETRERE BZA DA EEY
21,755,00078 7T #5 HAH G LAMERAE E A o
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18.

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18.

During the year, the Company transfers its assets and
liabilities at their carrying values to its subsidiaries upon the
intra-group restructuring on the date of transfer.

At the end of the reporting period 31 December 2011, the
Group’s investment properties of HK$23,930,000 (2010:
Nil) were pledged to secure banking facilities granting to
the Group (note 28).

The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
the PRC and with medium-term leases.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

#wEWE (8

FA- RERARETRERNEAR
ZAN/N T&ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ‘“ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ{;i
B

RBEERR—_F——F+t=-A=+—81"
REH 23,930,000 T2 EMEE T
HERERRTAKREZRITRER ZER
(BzE28) °

IR EE R B2 R EMER D BEOR
5o

9. NIMBRRZHE

The Company
PN
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Unlisted equities, at cost JEEMRA - EKANE

359,014 94,895

Less: Provision for B OREEERE (MsTa)

impairment loss (note a)

(55,648) =

303,366 94,895

21,592 10,719

324,958 105,614

Amounts due from FEUS BB A RIZRIE (MIEED)
subsidiaries (note b)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Analysed for reporting DITEEHAR
pUrposes as:
Non-current assets JEmENEE
Current assets mENE =

303,366 94,895
21,592 10,719

324,958 105,614

Note a: The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying
values of the investments in subsidiaries and considered
that in light of the operating loss of the subsidiaries and
the market conditions, impairment losses of approximately
HK$55,648,000 (2010: Nil) had been recognised during the
year. The directors of the Company were in the opinion that
the impairment loss was made based on the share of net
assets of the subsidiaries as at the end of reporting period.

Note b:  The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Mitta: AAREBLCEMRKBARZEE

ZHREE YRABRKNBARZEE

BB R TRRAFEAERREEIE A5

f(]55648000/%7t(_ —TF E)o

RRAEERE  REDNRERESHEK
ﬁ{ﬁwgﬂﬁﬂZﬁE%ﬁiﬁﬁféﬁ o

fizEb : SWEAEER 2O RRERER
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. KB AR ZH#EE (&)

R-B——FR-_F—FFF+_HA=1—
B AARIMBARIZFHENT -

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion
operations Class of registered capital ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary MY /K sharesheld ERATRMERA/ by the Company Principal activities
AAER fewdRASm FEROEN SomExR MR REE 2 AR R ITER
Directly Indirectly
2011 2010 2011 2010
“2--f _2-%F “B--f _2-%F
Kwang Sung Electronics Ho%g Kong Ordinary HK$253,855,%29 - g\gs;@ent holding
Holdings Limited } TEk 253,855,129 ¢ T
Kwang Sung Electronics
Holdings Limited
Kwang Sung Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,%OO - Investment holding
Holdings Company & BRIl 10,000%7 RERR
Limited (“Kwang Sung
Technology") (note (a))
REMBRRERAR
(TRERE]) (K ()
Shenzhen Kwang Sung PRC Ordinary US$10,561,780 - Manufacture and
(note (b)) B LER 10,561,780 %7t sales of electronic
w2 (R (b)) components
HERHEE Tl
Kwang Sung Electronics PRC Ordinary RMB500,000 - Provision of sales
I}radiﬁ%j (Shenzhen) i Lk AR 5000007 agerr]myC services
KERTE3 (F1) SALTER
BRAR () HERERS
Kwang Sung Holdings BVI Ordinary US$13,535,610 - Investment holding
Eo. Ltd. (F}grmerly EBRLEE  LTER 13535,610%7 RERR
nown as Kwang
Sung Group
Investment Co., Ltd.)
(“Kwang Sung
Holdings") (note (d))
Kwang Sung Holdings
Co. Ltd. (KB A
Kwang Sung
Group Investment
Co., Ltd.) ([ Kwang Sung
Holdings ) (3 (d)
Brocoli Co., Limited Korea Ordinary KRW1,966,450,000 - Research and
(“Brocol”) (note (¢) 45 LEk 196,450,000 & development and
Brocoli Co., Limited production of
([Brocoli ) (Hi3E (e)) Wiretape cabling
technology
products
T8 I £ 2 wiretape
BaEER




138

Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited
KEEFEBERAA

Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &= _—Z——

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FEToA=t—ALER

19. RMBRR 2 (8)

Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operations Class of registered capital
Name of subsidiary ML/ ML/ sharesheld  BRTRMERA/
NRER FepRRAl FRROEN EZMEL
Kwang Sung Electronics Korea Ordinary KRW50,000,000
Korea Co., Ltd. (note (f)) 88 LEk 50,000,0002E
Kwang Sung Electronics
Korea Co., Lid. (HfzE ()
Kwang Sung Group Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
Investmnet Co, Limited &% LER 2ET
(“Kwang Sung GI")
(note ()
Kwang Sung Group
Investmnet Co., Limited
([ Kwang Sung GI 1)
(B3t (g)
Baoying Kwang Sung PRC Ordinary 1S$10,000,000
(note () Gl LER 10000007
BEAE (K
Notes:
(@) Itis established on 14 September 2011.
(b) It is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Electronics at net
book value on 14 November 2011.
(c) Itis a wholly foreign owned investment commercial enterprise.
All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Electronics at net
book value on 14 November 2011.
(d)  The Company’s name has been changed since 15 September
2011.
(e)  All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Holdings at net
book value on 25 November 2011.
(f) All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Holdings at net
book value on 25 November 2011.
(g) Itis established on 31 March 2011
(h) Itis established on 18 July 2011.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years or during both years.

Proportion
ownership interest held
by the Company Principal activities
RADARE 2 A RRRLS IEER
Directly Indirectly
2011 2010 2011 2010
“8-—-f “T-%F “3--f _T-%%

100% 100% - Manufacture and
sales of electronic
components

HERHEEH Y
- Investment holding
RERR
- Manufacture and
sales of electronic
components
HERRESH ]

ftE

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)
(h)

FZARR_E——FNHATHAK °
ZABRTEZIEEERSE - TAERD
R-T——F+— A+ 70 B IRARE S E 5

% Kwang Sung Electronics ©

ZARRIEBERFELE - HEERDR
R-FB——F+— A+ 0 RREFHEEE

£ Kwang Sung Electronics ©

g@ag:gffinﬂ+£aﬂﬁﬁ%
8 o

FrE#mER=_Z—F+—A=+hHAIK
BR T F{EEE 4 = Kwang Sung Holdings °

FrEERER=_T——F+—A=+HHBE%
BREF{EE A = Kwang Sung Holdings ©

FZARR _E——F=A=+—HMKL -
RN —E——F LA+ N\BKL -

YR AR & )0 R 8 4 2 R 2 X B ]
BATIE B2
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20. GOODWILL 20. HE
HK$'000
FAET
COST R
At 31 December 2011 and 2010 RIB——FR_F-FTF+_A=1+—H 5,857
IMPAIRMENT RAE
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 R-E—ZF+-_A=+—HBKk-_FT—F—H—H =
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 5,857
At 31 December 2011 R—E2—F+=-_A=+—~H 5,857
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=A=+—H -
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—FF+_HA=+—H 5,857
The carrying amount of goodwill as at the end of reporting EERRERR 2 EAEREAEBHEE

periods are attributable to the Group’s cash generating unit
(“CGU”) representing sale of products using Wiretape™ cabling
technology.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by reference
to value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a ten-year period, and at a pre-tax discount rate of
approximately 14.3% (2010: 13.4%). The cash flows beyond
the ten-year period were assumed constant with zero growth
rate. The average growth rate used in the cash flow protections is
based on the relevant industry growth rate. Since CGU benefits
from the possession of 17-year patents on its primary product
registered in 2009, management of the Group believes that the
average growth rate is reasonable. Other key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of each inflows/
outflows including budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on the management’s expectations for the
market development and the directors considered appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$5,857,000 (2010: Nil) was
recognised.

A Wiretape" BERMERZIRESEL
B ([IReEAENAM]) -

ReELXBNZAIRESRE - H2EER
BEETHERETE SELAEEAR
BEEMEZ TFMMBRERELE LR
SMEARKIRA - HHATREIR KL 14.3%

—§¢ : 13 4%) EJr”' E?ﬁéi‘f—i

i E%%Eﬁfﬁﬁmbiﬁ EUZ$HEE$TJ
ERAETEMNEREATBHAEBITE
M ERREREMAEMS - ANERS
ELBENAR_TTNFREERERE
R+t FHEMNEMEE A AKEERE
BHRELFHERETBEIE - HMERE
EAENTIERREFABAREAA
mMHER - ARG NEREEEEMS
BEROEH - EFNRARMGITBEE -

REBEE-E——F+-A=+—HIFE
A - EEREEIE4)5,857,000/87T (=&
—TF  E)BHER -
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21. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 21. EEE
The Group The Company
r5E NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-f& —T-%4% —g——& —E-T4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER ; THT THT
Club memberships, at cost &FF&4£ - IR A
At 1 January Kn—H—H
Written off for the year F A
Transfer to its subsidiaries  RZANE & A H]
upon intra-group E/RRF R E
restructuring H B A A
At 31 December wt+—A=+—H
Accumulated impairment loss 2 511 £
At 1 January n—H—H
Written off for the year FAsE
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H
Carrying values REE
At 31 December wt+—-—A=+—H
22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. ERELEE
Patents
Vi)
The Group The Company
AEE NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-F —E-%F —E—-F —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER BT TR THL
Cost PAE
At 1 January Rn—A—H 11,371 11,371
Exchange adjustments bE 5 5E 2 (166) = =
Transfer to its EBAEPEAR
subsidiaries upon [
intra-group {Rp NG
restructuring - (11,371) -
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 19,478 19,644 - 11,371
Amortisation BiH
At 1 January R—HB—H 2,021 855 1,171 502
Exchange adjustments PE TR (38) 21 = =
Charge for the year RSN 1,168 1,145 474 669
Transfer to its EB AP EAR
subsidiaries RS
upon intra-group LI pNG
restructuring - = =
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 3,151 2,021 1,171
Carrying values FREE -
At 31 December nNt+=—A=+—H 16,327 17,623 10,200

The patents entitle the Group to manufacture products ZESNERENEENWE B R 17 F
using Wiretape™ cabling technology over 17 years from the 1 F3 Wiretape™ & i3 R T U35 22 @ © BRTE
date of acquisition. The carrying values will therefore be EETSIRRSTEREN 17 E T A%

amortised over the useful lives of 17 years.
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23. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES 23.

——

BRABSHRE
The Group and the Company
AEBERAKAT
2011 2010
—g——fF T IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

R—A—H
B BHERBEER

At 1 January
Less: impairment loss recognised

FEEMBRAES - BKAE

1,500 1,500

(1,500)

(1,500)

At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H

In view of significant operating losses incurred by the
investee, full impairment loss had been made for the cost
of investment in that entity of HK$1,500,000 in previous

HREXREEELAERKLEBHE &
ERXRBEFERRERZERIKA

X B e

1,500,000 3 T e 2 BURERHE -

years.
24. INVENTORIES 24. F&
The Group The Company
A% ART
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-%F —T-%% —g—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TR

Raw materials R 17,102
Work in progress TE & 22,273
Finished goods SURK i 24,634

64,009 82,673

TR TET TR

22,979

During the year ended 31 December 2010, a reversal of
write down of inventories of HK$1,834,000 (2011: Nil)
had been recognised, due to the subsequent sale of slow-
moving inventories during the year and included in cost of
sales for the year ended 31 December 2010.

WHE-F—FE+-A=+-AL%F
- EEFEMRL834000E T (ZF
——% fF) TLARR - NEFREE
HEBWEELRARE-F—FE+=
A=+ B L F R ERARE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEWEE 5 B E b EE Rk
The Group The Company
kS | NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B--F —E-TF “E—-F “T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAL TR THEL
Trade and bills receivables W E 5 R EZEE 122,339 119,064 118,943
Less: provision for impairment loss 35 : JBEEEEE (10,000) (13,194) (13,194)
112,339 105,870 105,749
Short-term loans to key REEEBAERIES
management personnel REEGHER
and employees 128
Proceeds receivable from & RARE 5
disposal of equity securities ZEWFETIE - 688
Tax reserve certificates (note 11(b)) E%i% (KfizE11(b)) 23,380 19,075
Deposits, prepayments and %% BNFER
other receivables Heb MR 13,967 , 14,284
150,239 140,070 139,924
(@) Ageing analysis (@) BRECTHT
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 — 90 REBRTEESEFP 2 FHEER
days to its trade customers. The Group does not hold R30E 90K o AREE 5 H E U
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its BRI A EERmsEMmER
trade receivables. Trade and bills receivables (net of HREHE - FEWE 5 REBRRILE
provision for impairment loss) presented based on SRMEY (MRREBEERE)
the invoice date with the following ageing analysis as RIERRZ R DTN T
of the end of the reporting period:
The Group The Company
b . | NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--F —E-%F “E--F “E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAL TR AT
0-90 days 0£90H 98,537 95,591 95,470
91 - 180 days 91Z180H 13,802 10,279 10,279
112,339 105,870 105,749
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

——

25. BWE 5 R HEMERK (8)

(@) Ageing analysis (Continued) (@) BER&& o (B)
Trade and bills receivables that are neither past due BEAEEFERZINTEETED R
nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable o RBHNERECEKESRE
under the external credit scoring system used by the BEREEREEESS -
Group.
Included in the above ageing analysis, there are L RE ST BERR T ——&F
HK$345,000 (2010: HK$687,000) of bills receivable +—A=+—HEREKRLPRIORZE
approximately aged less than 90 days as at 31 W ZE 3450008 T (ZE—FF ¢
December 2011. 687,000787T) °
(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) EWEZERERRMRZEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills BRAEKE S M EERRR RBERE
receivables are recorded using an allowance account T IR ERAC 8k « MEARE B RAA
unless the Group and the Company are satisfied that TR AU B ZE 7 e ELABIRR ) -
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the FEHBELTREEEEEERERES
impairment loss is written off against trade and bills KRR RS o
receivables directly.
The movements in impairment losses recognised FRNERREBEZEESHOT -
during the year is as follows:
The Group The Company
PS4 VNG
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F —E-EF —E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT AL TET TAT
At 1 January R—A—H 10,582
Impairment loss ERERBIEEE
recognised 2,772
Transfer to subsidiaries £ [E A 3 & 40/
upon intra-group EREE AR
restructuring (12,962) -
Amounts written off I AUR ] U
as uncollectible e (2,497) =
Reversal of AR E B
impairment loss (853) (160)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 10,000 13,194 13,194
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

25. [BULE 5 R H AR

(&)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) EWESREHERAZAE (B)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the BHE-_E——F+=-B=+—81
Group’s trade and bills receivables of approximately FE - AEBZEKEZREER
HK$10,000,000 (2010:HK$13,194,000) were FX#4)10,000,00087T (=T —FF :
individually determined to be impaired. 13,194,000 7T) & 01 515017 1
FEHIRRE ©
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the REBE_ZT-—ZEF+_A=1+—H1t
Company’s trade and bills receivables of FE ZIK FZ EWE 5 N EH MR
approximately HK$13,194,000 (2011:Nil) were #913,194,000% 7T (ZT——%F &)
individually determined to be impaired. The = o (& B 2B w8 i E H IR RUE o (@R
individually impaired receivables related to customers IR R (B 2 FE U B A= B2 B Bk 3R PR 26
that were in financial difficulties and management ZERERR MEREEFTGEE a8
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is KAy el E A — 30 Y FEULER o
expected to be recovered.
(c) The ageing analysis of trade and bills (c) EBHERBEZENESRER
receivables which are past due but not IR Z AR 4T -
impaired:
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E—-F —T-TF “E—-F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Less than 1 month P —{E A
1 to 3 months —(EAAZ=1EA
More than 3 months  #@EIZ A ={EA

7

26,692
11,085
2,358

40,135

1,244

30,983

FET TAT

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$40,135,000 (2010:
HK$30,983,000) which are past due as at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.

Included in the Company’s trade and bills receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$30,983,000 (2011:Nil) which
were past due as at the end of the reporting period for
which the Company had not provided for impairment
loss for the year ended 31 December 2010.

SEARKE W E 58K MR R AERR
RERE42E4) 40,135,000 7T (ZF

—Z 4 : 30,983,000/ 7T) * K%
HEARB B2 AR - MASE

WER UL FT IR ERE ©

%A$@ﬁ%%%%%m&m§m
BERE#{E%)30,983,0008 7T (—
——F ) i&iaﬁﬂﬂigﬂﬁﬂ
AR MARBREE=ZT—
TFE+_A=+—HILFETEL
SHEREESSE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25.

(c) The ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables which are past due but not
impaired: (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still

——

FEWE 5 R H bR (&)

(c) CBHERAEZEBINESRER
BRI Z BRI 4T - ()

BEEMEERE  BUSRNREARE
BN ANRRARFERRLER S 2
MEPHR - RIFAERSR - BME
EERWEBEAE - N EABER
DR R 28K E - WEERERE
BEZFERIERERE - LT
R 2 R /OKR (ZF—F

considered fully recoverable. The average age of F:85K)
these receivables is 90 days (2010: 85 days.)
26. BANK BALANCE AND CASH 26. RITEBRBERE
The Group The Company
r&E b ON|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F —T-FF —E—-F —E-EE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx THL TET FHTL
Bank balance and cash RITHERNIRS 110,182 131,740
Less: restricted bank deposit J& : <R HIERTT
(note) TR (HI=E) (472) -
Cash and cash equivalents 4R&IRERERNK
in the consolidated ZEER
statement of cash flows HEZEEY 109,710 133,505 131,740
Note: PffsE -

As at 31 December 2011, bank deposit amounted to approximately
HK$472,000 was pledged as securities for certain banking facilities.

Bank balances of the Group represented short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 0.5% per annum for 2011; while for the year
ended 31 December 2010, bank balances carry interest
at market rates which range from 0.001% to 0.36% per
annum.

Bank balances of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2010 represented short-term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less, and carried interest
at market rates which range from 0.001% to 0.5%. The
Company does not have any bank balance at the end of
the reporting period 31 December 2011.

R-ZT——F+-_A=+—8 ' BIEZXLH
472,000 L EARIFIERE TIRITRE 2 KRR ©

A5 B2 $RAT 68 To 4= 8 A SHIA T 2188
2R - RoE——F - BIIBHT)
75 45 F % 5 4F.0.001% F0.5% 3t &
MARE-Z—BE+-A=T—AILF
[+ SR T ETTS FI R F40.001%
F0.36%:t 8 °

REBEZE_ZT—ZFF+_A=+—HLHF
E @ ARRZBITEKRTIE=ZM@AKUT
FHA RS A RS F0.001% £0.5% &1
BRZREBER -REBEEZ-_ZT—F+=A
=t+—HIREHR AW EEFE
AISRITHERR ©
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EEFE 5 R EHMERT
The Group The Company
PS4 AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E—-F —Z-TF “E—-F “Z-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT AT TET THT
Trade payables 2 5 ERER 76,314 65,825 65,825
Accrued expenses and EEtER K
other payables HiERBER 26,185 18,631 17,371
102,499 84,456 83,196
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as of the end of JERE 5 ERIR3 = H R RS BR 2 BRI
the reporting period based on invoice date is as follows: DT -
The Group The Company
r&E AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E—-F —E-%F “E—-F “E-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx BT TET FHTL
0-90 days 0-90 H 65,385 64,938 64,938
91-180 days 91-180 H 9,971 767 767
181-365 days 181-365 H 958 120 120
76,314 65,825
The average credit period on purchases of goods is O — 90 BEVEHEEHA0EREIOX - AEEE
days. The Group has financial risk management policies BoEREEER  BERMAEMER
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the REEHIR AT o

credit timeframe.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE
28. BANK BORROWING

——

28. SRITEE

2011
2K
HK$’000

TET

40,262

A
EER

Secured (note)
Unsecured

33,700

73,962 13,844

The Group
A5E

13,758
86

The Company
ALF
2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAT

The bank borrowing bears variable interest rate ranging
from 4.00% to 6.98% (2010: 4.19% to 5.18%) per annum
and is repayable within 1 year.

Notes:

Banking facilities of approximately KRW5,973,057,000
(approximately HK$40,202,000) and RMB14,000,000 (approximately
HK$17,269,000) (2010: KRW2,400,000,000, approximately
HK$16,510,000) were secured by the Group’s land and buildings in
Korea of HK$71,722,000 (2010: HK$21,603,000) and the Group’s
investment properties of approximately HK$23,930,000 (2010: Nil).

During the year, the Group obtained new bank borrowing of
KRW10,973,637,000 (approximately HK$77,035,000) respectively
from Industrial Bank of Korea (2010: KRW4,734,264,000
(approximately HK$32,567,000)).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the bank borrowing of
approximately HK$73,962,000 is used for financing the construction
in progress in Korea (2010: HK$13,844,000 for general working

RITEEREFFE400%E6.98% (=
T—TF :419%£5.18%) REAR —F
MEE -

BfEE -

iR 77 Bt & %85,973,057,000%% B ( #740,202,000
B 7t) & A R #14,000,0007T ( #917,269,000
B Jt) ( = F — Z 4 : 2,400,000,000 72 |
16,510,000/ 7C) E FAAREB AR R 2 i &
371,722,000/ T ( Z=F —Z 4 : 21,603,000
BIT) RANEBE 2 B Y49 23,930,000 7T (=
T—TF )R-

£ A N & B [\ Industrial Bank of Korea B 15 #7
iR 17 & B10,973,637,000 5% ( #977,035,000
BIL) (ZF —Z & :4,734,264,0008 B (4
32,567,000 7T)) °

REBE-_ZE—F+-A=+—HBIFE ' R1T
EE#)73,962,000870 (ZZ—ZF RERBE
— MR LB B S 13,844,000 7T) FRE(SEEIER

capital purpose in Korea). T2 o
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B
Authorised and issued share capital EE R B EBITIRR
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BB AR £ igrar 4= i
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T B TFHET Th% FET

Authorised: JARE
Ordinary shares of FIRMEEO.1BT
HK$0.1 each 2T @ 1,500,000
Ordinary shares, EEITRAR
issued and 2 EEA
fully paid:
At 1 January and R—H—BK
31 December +=-—A=+—H 323,897

150,000 [ B1o]oNo]o]o)

32,390

323,897

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

EREFEAFREBRTIRE IR ZBE
FTRARBKRE LA ERENER —F
SERE - UARRZRBEENS - B
EBRRFEREFER -
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30. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

30. KRRHE

Properties
revaluation
Share Contribution reserve  Statutory  Exchange  Retained
premium reserve VES reserve reserve profits Total
REE HERE EfRE IERE EiRE RIE o
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000
At 1 January 2010 R=E-F£-H—-H 58,566 9,946 18,386 8434  (18627) 243,180 319,885
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE 2E NG AR
for the year - - 1481 - 6,243 7,549 15,273
Transfer EEbC S - = - 942 = (942) -
At 31 December 2010 WZE-—F&+-A=+-H 58566 9,946 19,867 9376  (12,384) 249,787 335,158
Total comprehensive income  AEE2E NG AR
for the year - - (341) - (1,784)  (41287) (43412
Realisation upon intra-group  EEREHEABER
restructuring - - - (9,376) - 9,376 -
Reduction of contributions ~ BIEIRELE
from shareholders = (1,468) - = = - (1,468)
Release on disposal of land and MFBARIHE LK
buildings to its subsidiaries ~ EFHER - - (1952) - - 21505 1979
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+-A=+-H 58566 8478 - - (14168) 239381 292,257
31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 31. iTEEEaRE
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —Z=-TF =ZEB—-—-F —Z=-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET THT
Fair value NREE
At 1 January W—HB—H 7,391
Transfer to subsidiaries BN ERR
upon intra-group B ETE
restructuring N =
Fair value change credited st ALRZEEZEK
to the consolidated ZARBE
income statement BE) (939)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 6,452
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31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued) 31. fTEEMAR (&)

In March 2009, the Group and the Company entered into
a patent transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Seller”). The consideration
of approximately HK$10,242,000 was partially satisfied
by issuing 8,534,933 shares of the Company at HK$0.41
per share to the Seller and the remaining consideration of
approximately HK$6,743,000 will be settled in cash along
with put options (“Options”) on period from the end of third
year to the end of forth year after the transaction, under
either condition:

(i) the Group and the Company will not be required
to make further payment if the share price of the
Company is higher than HK$1.2; or

(i) if the share price of the Company is lower than
HK$1.2, the Group and the Company will be required
to pay the difference of the basis price (being
HK$1.2) and the share price, multiple the number of
shares sold to the seller.

The details of the Options were set out in the Agreement
and the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2009.

The fair value of the Options granted is estimated at the
date of grant using binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the Options were
granted. The inputs into the model were as follows:

RZZBEZEENFE=F » KEEKAQ A EE
VE=FH (BRI —hEFEEER
& ([Mpag]) - RIBA 10,242,000 7T @ 36
DIEFR0.41 8 TE 178,534,933 Ix A A
AR TE R - REHREEL6,743,000%
fnh#&%ﬂé%‘irﬁi%miﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬂ

AR ERfE ([ERfE]) MIATIBER TR S

AN

() WAKRERARAZEHEERSRH
1287 AEBRARRBEAEST N
BRFE o,

(i) WARA ZBEMHERERL2E
T ANEBRARBASINEKRE
% (BN1.287T) ERDERZEN

Z8 - RALETEHZBROHUA -
HEZFBENBRLARRR_ZTAN

F=ZRA=THBEHZAE -

PR B2 A A BETIRA —AAEE
TR A AR HIRE 2 R S IR 1T 1
it o RBEA 2B ABUR B -

Dividend yield R B =
Expected volatility SELENL
Risk-free interest rate mERE
Expected life TEHAGE AR
Weighted average share price InEFHRE

2011 2010
—T—FF

0% 0%

85% 87%
0.9% 0.8%
1.25 year 2.25 years
HK$0.600 HK$0.630

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the Options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the Options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

“HEAEAD ARG R AR EE-
AAERREAABEMRAEHRRERRIIZ
RESHEGREALE - HIREERNZHME
EETZERR 2 TR M -
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. EEMIEA

The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised in the Group’s and the Company’s statements

RAEE M AR R Z A AR KR A FERR
EENIR (BE) BEAKED RRFEAZ

of financial position and the movements during the year are BT
as follows:
The Group AEE
Revaluation
of land and
buildings
Depreciation held for
allowances in  own use and
excess of investment
related properties
depreciation EftiFER A
BHERTE Z2itRETF Patents Total
ZHERRE URREWE 5% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—ZF—HF—H - 1,729 2,657 4,386
Charged (credited) to RE&PHR (FTA)
profit or loss (note 11) (GEINY) 1,114 - (229) 885
Debited to reserve TEf R Nk - 2,609 = 2,609
At 31 December 2010 R_E—ZF+-_A=+—H 1,114 4,338 2,428 7,880
(Credited) charged to RE&=HP GEA) 08
profit or loss (note 11) (BfzE11) (288) 974 (181) 505
Debited to reserve TEf R Nk = 884 = 884
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+-F=+—H 826 6,196 2,247 9,269
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 32. IRIEFIE (&)
The Company AN E]
Revaluation
of land and
buildings
Depreciation held for
allowances in  own use and
excess of investment
related properties
depreciation EEEFER A
BHEEBETE 2ii#RETF Patents Total
ZITEEEE URREWE BRI @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2010 R_E—ZF—HF—H = 1,729 1,793 3,522
Charged (Credited) to RPN (FTA)
profit or loss 1,114 - (109) 1,005
Debited to reserve TERERIR = 577 = 577
At 31 December 2010 RZZ—ZEF+=-A=1+—H 1,114 2,306 1,684 5,104
Credited to reserve REERETA - (99) - (99)
Credited to profitor loss BT A (1,114) (228) (1,684) (3,026)
Release on disposal of iNELENS =)
land and buildings REFRER
to its subsidiaries - (1,979) - (1,979)

At 31 December 2011 R_E2—F+-_H=+—H =

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$1,967,000 (2010: Nil) in
respect of the Korea Branch and subsidiaries, which will
expire in 2016, subject to the approval and confirmation by
the relevant tax authorities. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the above tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary difference approximately of
HK$43,737,000 (2010: HK$17,125,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

E’\ﬁﬁziﬁ;ﬁﬂi NEBHAERE D QR LK

NaE)Z AFE A IEE B 1,967,000 7%
7_5 (ZZE—ZF  &#) THeR T —RF
EIER - AT ISR EILE R R - A
RESETEET AR m F KR - M Eph
FRIEE BRI IEEE -

RMEBAR AEBERHIFBEZ
BH #4943,737,0008 T ( = T — T & :
17,125,000 7T) - AEBRERZ A
MEGREZERRAECHEEE  ERLR
JERBUE A AR AT TR =2 E
K o
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32.

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the Company is subject
to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for any dividend
payment from its PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$1,003,000 (2010:HK$799,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC
of approximately HK$20,052,000 (2010: HK$15,977,000)
have not been recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that those profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(@) The Group operates a MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 (2010:
HK$20,000). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest
immediately.

(b) Employees in Korea participate in a National Pension
Scheme which is a mandatory insurance scheme
under the National Pension Act (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the
Scheme at a specified rate of the employees’ monthly
income, subject to adjustments and a cap of monthly
income stipulated in the Scheme.

(c) The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the PRC
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specified percentage of its payroll
costs to the scheme. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

32.

33.

34.

IRIERIE (8)

—ZTENF-A B KRFER
BT B~ B R A 2 R AR BB 5% 2
BRI R G TR - I 8 5 81 o B
BZWBRAIZADENEABZER
4= 24)20,052,0008 7T (ZE—FF :
15,977,000/ 7T) R BELEH BB EL
1,003,000/ 7T (ZF—2Z 4 : 799,000/%
7T)  RERARREHZEMBE AR 2K
BHBER - AERETEEAR 2R B

B -

FEUS iR 3R SR IR
AR TEER - RERAREKEER -

SR IAEF

(@) AKERE(FERHIMERERE
GBIy RIRBEE CEBIEDD FriE
Rz EBRHIBTESTE - @B
BB EEATE 2 AEHRTE
REFEl - RIFRESAE - BERE
BEZBAREERBRALZLN%Z
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(b) HEEZESZEBSEAEHE
HA—RIRBIZURIREIAR L 2 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &2 - ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE
35.

36.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 16 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, advisers and consultants, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options are exercisable progressively between one to three
years from the date of grant and will expire at the end of
a period to be notified by the directors of the Company to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years from the date of grant. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$0.1 each of the Company.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The Group received Korean government grants with
proceeds of approximately KRW48,834,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$325,000) to finance the acquisition
of certain plant and equipment through the acquisition
of a subsidiary in 2009. The grant is initially measured
at its fair value. The benefit derived from such grant
will be recognised in profit or loss on the same basis as
depreciation for the related plant and equipment. Such a
government grant is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method at the end of reporting period.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, government
grant of approximately HK$69,000 has been recognised in
the consolidated income statement (2010: approximately
HK$66,000).

In December 2011, the Group also received PRC
government grants with proceeds of RMB543,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$670,000) to finance the
development of new software system. The grant is initially
measured at its fair value. The benefit derived from such
grant will be recognised in profit or loss on the same basis
as amortisation of the related software. Such a government
grant is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method at the end of reporting period. During the
year ended 31 December 2011, no amortisation of the
deferred income commenced.

35.

36.

——

/|
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Z4) - URBARBIRD - BREA BX
HEMEF —FE=FRAELTE - L

RARREFR BRSNS & EEK
T/?E*T—irﬁ/\zﬁﬁ [ AR A B S - MERX R T

SHEABRE B HRET T F - ZDERE
i’/j#ﬁé?ﬂﬁ)\uuﬁ% HX‘!‘HXOI/%TEZ$
ATEER -

REBEE-_ZT—F+-_A=+—HILF
S HEBREERE 176 - EEEK
B e

BT % By
AEBWEERBFAE RBLHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

37. COMMITMENTS 37. #kiE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period contracted for but not provided for in
the financial statements in respect of the following:

(a)

RBEHRNABHRRF D ETER
RIEBEH 2 EARNAFEWT

The Group
rEHE
2011

Property, plant and LE = YN
equipment

—g——F _—T TF —g—F _—T TF
HK$’000
Fi

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FExT TATT

The Company
PN
2010 2011 2010

25

(b)  The Group and the Company as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

(b)

ANEE MR RN AWERATEA

RBEHR - AKERARRREN
AERREHER AREN 2 RIEM
EFIEZ AT

The Group
rER
2011

HK$'000

FHxT

Within one year —FA 6,327
In the second to EFREEFRAFNA

fifth year inclusive (BIEEEMSF) 4,751

—F——F ZT-TF =B——F ZTTF
HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET THT

4,799 1,275 930

6,027 2,306 902

11,078 10,826 3,581 1,832

The Company
PN
2010 2011 2010

Operating lease payments represent rentals payables
by the Group and the Company for certain of its
office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and the
Company respectively and rentals are fixed for an
average of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and the
Company respectively.

REMEFRREA KRB RARRE
THMRENEZENES - ARE R
RRE] 2 MOS0 5
NERME - MAKERANRF]ZHE
70 BIEERFH\FRME
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE
37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(c) The Group and the Company as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$645,000 (2010: HK$312,000).
The property is expected to generate rental yields
of 6.12% (2010:6.12%) per annum on an ongoing
basis. All of properties held have committed tenants
for the next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receipts which fall due as follows:

——

37. & (&)

AEBRAREWERHEA

REEFBRDZMERS VAN E
645,000 7T (ZE—2F4 : 312,000
BIL) c HHAME N RBES KRBT
L6.12%(—ZZF—FF 16.12%) °
2EAFEZYERRAR—FHER
AP o

RBEHR - AREEEBFRINZ
AREERENT :

(c)

The Group The Company
rEEH bINET|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——-F =—Z=-TF B Z=-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET FET
Within one year —FA 220
In the second to REZZRFA

fifth year inclusive (PREERMT) -
220

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with shareholders
(i)  During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with Kwang Sung Korea,

a major shareholder of the Company:

38. EXHEALR S

BRANBAFE 3R EL A 0T PRI R 2 X Z 40
AEBRILATEAMEALRS -

HRREZR 5

i) MEAN AEEEKXRARETE
BERFBBBIEERISIA TR S

(@)

HER KM

Sales of finished goods

Subcontracting fee paid/payable

Referral commission paid/payable 21/ FEEN RS
B/ ERINeER

2011 2010
—¥——% -FT TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT SR
410 1,109

494 626

1,395 2,300

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business and were on normal
commercial terms.

ARAZEERAK LR
% REARR—REBBE
iR [F 2 PG 2 RS 1T o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@) Transactions with shareholders (Continued)

(i) Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June
2003, two shareholders, Mr. Yang Jai Sung
and Kwang Sung Korea, would indemnify the
Group for any tax liabilities payable for periods
prior to 30 June 2003. Amounts receivable
from Mr. Yang Jai Sung and Kwang Sung
Korea under the indemnity at 31 December
2011 are approximately HK$3,452,000 and
HK$5,026,000 (2010:HK$4,050,000 and
HK$5,896,000) respectively.

(b) Transactions with other related parties

(i)  Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the

38. EXBHEALRH ()

(@ BEREzZZH (E)

(i BEAHA-_ZTZ _i/\
TTH=ZAZRERERY W
EREREELERBERNE
TR _EE=FA=1+HH
MRz ENHEEEERAEE
EHE - BREBERBRZ
T——F+_A=+—HEWYK
;’EEE?&E&%%EZ%\

Bl 47 A& 3,452,000/ JT &
5,026,000/%7E(_$ ZF
4,050,0007% 7T & 5,896,0007%8
JLC) °

(b) HEMBEAEALZRS
(i) FEEBAEZME

TEEEAEME (BEER
MIFE I3 AT E N T ARAE

Company’s directors as disclosed in note 13 BEEZBERERMF14FH
and certain of the highest paid employees as BEYNTETESHREEZS
disclosed in note 14, is as follows: ) #AT -
2011 2010
—2——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T

Short-term employee benefits EHESRET
Post-employment benefits BB 2t 7

6,839 9,631
62 213

6,901 9,844

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 12).

(i)  During the year, the Group paid a consultancy
fee of approximately HK$562,000 (2010:
HK$540,000) to a close family member of Mr.
Yang Jai Sung, a shareholder and a director
of the Company. No consultancy fee was
outstanding at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

<&@z st AT 8 TRA
(BMzx12) -

(i RAFE XEERAQRZ
BREFRESREE LA —FR
FI A EBE 4562,000/%8 7T
(ZZE—Z4 : 540,000 7T) °
R_E——FR_T—ZTF
+-A=+—BYEHRIN
ZEEFHEJE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HE—ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

——

38. EXHEALRH (&)

(Continued)
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) BAHMAEALTZRS (&)

(Continued)

(i) Loan to key management personnel (i) MEBEREABREER
Included in other receivables were loans to key HEpp g a e ERnEEEE
management personnel and the terms of which ANEREBEZEZR EEzHm
are as follows: T
Name of
Key management personnel Relationship
FTEEHEEBAEERRE [£7EEA 2011 2010

—E——F —E—FF
Note HK$ HK$
I BT
Due from
JEW AT A LFUE
Mr. Lee Don Gi General Manager (i) 69,000
THELE gt
Mr. Suh Jin Won General Manager (i) 35,000
RBRE A LRGeS
Note: M

(i)

As the general manager has authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or
indirectly, as well the directors of the Company
consider the general manager of the Company
is one of the key management personnel of the
Group, accordingly the fund advance with the
general manager of the Company is constituted
as a related party transaction. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

(i) HAREEEAEREEEER
FERE  ERRENER 2
XBEE  ARARFESR
RARRZ BB RAER 2
IBEEEEZ— FEWARH
ZHBAETE AN SIRIBR, — R
BHR5 - RS RERA
REBRBFATER -
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2007 2008 2009 2010
—TTE —TT)N\FE —TTHhE —T-ITF
Consolidated Income FAEBHEE
Statement (HK$'000) (F%&T)
Turnover e 783,453 797,912 592,280 680,481
Profit (loss) from operations ~ #&&&%F| (E518) 34,870 (1,538) 3,308 14,018
Profit (loss) after taxation and B EEANA A
attributable to owners WA NElS
of the Company wmA (EE) 30,275 (2,298) (35,774) 8,087
Dividends f% 8 9,116 1,577 — -
Basic earnings (loss) BIREARZF
per share — HK cents (E518) — Al 9.66 (0.73) (11.13) 2.50
Diluted earnings (loss) BREERTF
per share — HK cents (E18) — Al 9.46 (0.73) (11.13) 2.50
Consolidated Statement FEBMRRER
of Financial Position (F57T)
(HK$'000)
| Non-current assets _3E}FEJJ§§_ 97568 77984 104708 163,708
Current assets RBEE 380,530 352,432 390,091 366,194
Current liabilities RBEE (81,564) (69,262) (128,360) (141,586)
| Netcurrentassets ~ RBEAFE 298966 283170 261,731 224,608
| Longterm liabiies ~ FERBEME 0 (1698) (2,009  (11,860)  (14,332)
Net assets BEEE 394,836 359,145 354,579 373,984
Consolidated Statement SEESRER
of Cash Flows (HK$'000) (F%&m)
Net cash from (used in) e EES (FTA)
operating activities ZIREFE 25,335 (9,452) 32,172 730
Net cash from (used in) REESFE (1)
investing activities ZREFHE 3312 (9,515) 11,977 (59,111)
Net cash from (used in) BMEEBME (F1A)
financing activities ZREFHE (7,785) (3,686) (80) 13,365
Net increase (decrease) RERBREEFEY
in cash and Z3Em Cd)
cash equivalents FEE 20,862 (22,653) 44,069 (45,016)
Share Information (HK$) BHER (1)
Highest share price RRE $3.35 $3.27 $2.70 $0.98
Lowest share price RIERE $1.03 $1.11 $0.33 $0.41
Year end closing share price G M AL(E $3.35 $2.68 $0.41 $0.65

2011

557,551

(57,389)

(49,714)

(15.35)

(15.35)

220,113

332,908
(216,503)

116,405

(9,269)

327,249

(16,473)
(69,267)

61,963

(23,777)

$0.76
$0.21
$0.60
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